Public Document Pack

Mid Devon District Council

Community Policy Development Group

Tuesday, 28 March 2017 at 2.15 pm
Exe Room, Phoenix House, Tiverton

Next ordinary meeting
Tuesday, 6 June 2017 at 2.15 pm

Those attending are advised that this meeting will be recorded

Membership

Cllr Mrs E M Andrews
Clir Mrs A R Berry
Cllr F W Letch

Cllr Mrs E J Slade
Cllr Mrs H Bainbridge
Cllr Mrs G Doe

Cllr B A Moore

Clir R J Dolley

Cllr Mrs C P Daw

AGENDA

Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any
discussion which may take place

1 Apologies and Substitute Members

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of appointment of
substitute Members (if any).

2 Public Question Time

To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members
of the public and replies thereto.
Note: A maximum of 30 minutes is allowed for this item.

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting
(attached).

4 Chairmans Announcements

To receive any announcements that the Chairman may wish to make.

1

Committee Administrator: Julia Stuckey
Tel: 01884 234209
Email: jstuckey@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

10

11

12

13

Strategic Grants and Service Level Agreement Programme (Pages
11 - 18)

To update Members on arrangements for the introduction of grant
awards linked to Service Level Agreements for selected agencies during
the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020.

Single Equalities Policy and Equality Objective (Pages 19 - 42)

To remind Members of the Council’s statutory duties under the Equality
Act 2010, and to seek members’ approval for the revised Single Equality
Scheme and Equality Objective.

Health and Safety Policy (Pages 43 - 68)

To advise Members that, in accordance with the Health and Safety at
Works Act 1974, the Council’s Health and Safety at Works Policy has
been reviewed by the Health and Safety Committee and that all actions
from the report dated 27 September 2016 are being undertaken.

CCTV Annual Update (Pages 69 - 72)

To update Members of the changes to the Town Centre CCTV system
and operational overview

Air Quality Update (Pages 73 - 80)

To provide an update of progress of the revision of the statutory Air
Quiality Action Plans for the district.

Performance and Risk (Pages 81 - 88)

To provide Members with an update on performance against the
corporate plan and local service targets for 2016-17 as well as providing
an update on the key business risks.

Financial Monitoring (Pages 89 - 104)

To present a financial update in respect of the income and expenditure
so far in the year.

Active Devon Draft Strategy (Pages 105 - 106)
To review the Active Devon Draft Strategy for comment or suggested.
Energy Switching Scheme

To receive a verbal update from the Public Health Manager regarding
2

Committee Administrator: Julia Stuckey

Tel: 01884 234209

Email: jstuckey@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

the Energy Switching Scheme that will be introduced by the Authority in
the coming months.

14 Chairmans Annual Report (Pages 107 - 108)

To receive the Chairman’s draft annual report on the work of the Group
since May 2016, which will be submitted to Council on 26 April 2017.

15 Identification of Items for the Next Meeting

Note: This item is limited to 10 minutes. There should be no discussion
on the items raised.

Leisure Update

Public Health Six Monthly Update
Financial Monitoring
Performance and Risk

Gypsies and Travellers Policy
Town and Parish Charter

Stephen Walford
Chief Executive
Monday, 20 March 2017

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press
and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not
to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as
unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting
and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who
may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film
proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Member Services Officer in
attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

Members of the public may also use other forms of social media to report on
proceedings at this meeting.

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to
discussion. Lift access the first floor of the building is available from the main
ground floor entrance. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair access, are also
available. There is time set aside at the beginning of the meeting to allow the
public to ask questions.

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid
or using a transmitter. If you require any further information, or

3

Committee Administrator: Julia Stuckey

Tel: 01884 234209

Email: jstuckey@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large
print) please contact Julia Stuckey on:

Tel: 01884 234209

E-Mail: jstuckey@middevon.gov.uk

Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms.

Committee Administrator: Julia Stuckey

Tel: 01884 234209

Email: jstuckey@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

Public Document Pack Agenda Iltem 3

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of a MEETING of the COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP
held on 31 January 2017 at 2.15 pm

Present
Councillors
Mrs E J Slade, Mrs J B Binks,
Mrs H Bainbridge, Mrs G Doe and
F W Letch
Apologies
Councillor(s) Mrs E M Andrews, Mrs A R Berry, B AMoore and
R J Dolley

Also Present
Councillor(s) C R Slade and Mrs M E Squires

Also Present

Officer(s): Andrew Jarrett (Director of Finance, Assets and
Resources), Liz Reeves (Head of Customer Services), Lee
Chester (Leisure Manager), Simon Newcombe (Public
Health and Professional Services Manager), Nick
Sanderson (Head of Housing and Property Services) and
Julia Stuckey (Member Services Officer)

58 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
Apologies were received from Cllir Mrs E M Andrews, Mrs A R Berry, B A Moore and
R J Dolley. ClIr Moore was substituted by Clir Mrs J Binks. (Cllr Mrs Slade took the
Chair).

59 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no members of the public present.

60 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the Meeting were approved as a correct record and SIGNED by the
Chairman.

61 CHAIRMANS ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman had no announcements to make.
62 BUDGET
The Group had before it and NOTED a report * from the Director of Finance, Assets

and Resources outlining options available in order for the Council to move towards a
balanced budget for 2017/18.

Community Policy Development Group — 31 JanuErﬁ@ﬁS 29



63

The Director outlined the contents of the report explaining that the formula grant had
been confirmed shortly before Christmas and that it confirmed a four year settlement.
The Council Tax referendum limit had been set at 2% as in previous years but
District Councils could increase band D by up to £5, which was around 3%.

Changes had been made to the New Homes Bonus grant which now stipulated that
Councils must build a baseline number of properties before they would become
eligible to receive the bonus. In Mid Devon this was likely to mean that a claim could
only be made after the completion of 130 — 140 new homes. The New Homes Bonus
was currently paid as a dowry for 6 years but this was reducing to 5 years and then
to 4 years.

The budget gap had improved from the figure within the report to just under £90k
from a balanced position. Since issuing the report the Director had held further
meetings with service managers and the gap had subsequently been reduced. These
savings had been generated by Devon-wide Business Rate revenues, better prices
and increased tonnages for recycling, investment income, rental for Station Yard and
some staffing reductions among others.

The Director highlighted areas for savings that had been identified by the Community
PDG Budget Working Group such as an increase to the level of summons costs
charged for non paying of Council Tax and Business Rates and changing the policy
for single occupiers who failed to notify of a change in circumstance and who would
in future receive a small penalty. The Head of Planning and Regeneration had
identified some extra income from the levy of Section 106 monies and pre-application
advice. The Director reported that the working group had proved a useful exercise in
helping to move towards a balanced budget. It was AGREED that a working group
be put in place to look at the budget for 2018-19, which would meet in the spring.
The membership of the group would be agreed at the next meeting.

The Director informed the Group that a report to Cabinet was recommending that the
budget gap be met by use of the New Homes Bonus for this year.

Note: - Report * previously circulated and attached to Minutes.

LEISURE PRICING

The Group had before it a report * from the Leisure Manager — Development &
Performance advising Members of the proposed leisure pricing strategy for 2017/18.

The officer outlined the contents of the report, explaining that it identified the four
income streams; front of house, wetside, health and fithess and dryside. The report
proposed an indicative increase on current fees and prices per area, ranging from 3
to 5%, following a benchmarking comparison with local like-for-like providers.

It was proposed that concessionary memberships, which were currently restricted to
using facilities before 5.00pm, be changed to allow unrestricted access, rewarding
members for their loyalty and attracting new custom from people that may be
disadvantaged by the existing time restrictions.

Community Policy Development Group — 31 Janllj:g\@g(ﬁﬁ

30



64

65

Auto-renewal of annual memberships would be available next year which would
make it easier for customers to renew at the end of their subscription. They would
receive correspondence to advise them that the payment would be taken.

Officers were engaging with local businesses to encourage corporate relationships
and arrangements. Following a review of business size in Mid Devon, corporate
deals would be offered to all organisations rather than only those with a minimum of
10 employees which was the current criteria. Local businesses would also be offered
training in areas such as health and nutrition, business management and team
development.

Discussion took place regarding employers being shown the importance of having a
healthy workforce and that local accommodation providers could be asked to
promote the centres, or incentivised to do so.

Due to the date of the meeting of the Group there would not be time for the report to
go to Cabinet and then an appropriate amount of time for consultation with customers
be put in place before the new financial year. Therefore it was RECOMMENDED
that the Cabinet Member agree the strategy and price increases proposed as a
delegated decision.

(Proposed by the Chairman)
Note: Report * previously circulated and attached to Minutes.
PERFORMANCE AND RISK

The Group had before it and NOTED a report * from the Audit Team Leader
providing Members with an update on performance against the corporate plan and
local service targets for 2016-17 as well as providing an update on the key business
risks.

Note: - Report * previously circulated and attached to Minutes.
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group had before it a report * from the Head of Customer Services and ICT
updating Members on progress made with the Community Engagement Action Plan
(2015-17).

The officer explained that following reorganisation there was no longer a dedicated
officer for community engagement and that the work had been embedded within
services. The report contained an action plan for moving forward and it was the
responsibility of service managers to ensure that when changes were being
implemented, such as digital forms, customers were made aware and that feedback
was received.

The Citizens Panel had reduced in effectiveness as it had become more difficult to
get people to engage and responses from them had reduced. It was therefore
necessary to look into different ways of engaging and it was proposed that
Gov.Delivery would provide a simple means of customer engagement.

Community Policy Development Group — 31 JanuErag’@7

31



66

67

Discussion took place regarding:

¢ Not all members of the public had access or wanted to use digital services;

e Digital communications were the cheapest form of communication for
customers;

e Gov.Delivery and the services it could provide.

It was RECOMMENDED to Cabinet:

a) That the work taking place to engage with a wide range of Mid Devon
residents and stakeholders be noted.

b) That Cabinet note and agree the revised action plan and timetable for review
of the Community Engagement Strategy.

(Proposed by the Chairman)
Note: - Report * previously circulated and attached to the Minutes.
ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR STATISTICS

The Group had before it and NOTED information * regarding anti-social behaviour
statistics for 2016-17.

The Head of Housing and Property Services explained that these figures only related
to matters dealt with by the Community Safety Team and did not include any
statutory nuisances dealt with by Environmental Health or anti social behaviour by
housing tenants which was dealt with by Housing Services.

Note: - Information * previously circulated and attached to the Minutes.
PUBLIC HEALTH SIX MONTLY UPDATE

The Group had before it and NOTED a report* from Public Health and Professional
Services Manager providing an update on progress of the Public Health Plan.

The Officer explained that Public Health was working to a programme that did not
have a budget associated with it and it had to work to encourage projects to become
self sustaining. Walking football for example had achieved this with members paying
a small subscription which covered the cost of renting facilities.

The officer also highlighted the GP Exercise Referral Programme which had started
ahead of schedule and had already received 12 referrals. This scheme was
developed to encourage people to get into the habit of physical activity with the
longer term aim that they would become regular users of Mid Devon leisure.

Discussion took place regarding:

e Concessionary memberships and the changes to times of day that they could
be used and the intention that this would increase usage,;

e The availability of funding to encourage target groups to take up exercise;

e The success of the walking football programme;

e The benefits of exercise such as health and overcoming loneliness;

Community Policy Development Group — 31 Janllj:g\@g(ﬁﬁ

32



e Food safety the fact that almost 95% of food premises in Mid Devon achieved
level 4 or above.

e Proposals to support the Dementia Alliance.
Note: Report previously circulated and attached to Minutes.
68 AIR QUALITY

The Public Health Manager explained that he had hoped to be able to update
Members regarding the joint (Exeter, Teignbridge, East Devon, Mid Devon) Air
Quality bids that had been submitted to DEFRA Air Quality Grants 2016/17.
Unfortunately the outcome of the bids had been delayed and he did not expect to
hear for another week.

The Officer confirmed that a review of the Air Quality Strategy was taking place and a
project plan and time line had been put in place with a view to a report going to
Cabinet in October. Updates would be provided to all meetings of the Group.

69 IDENTIFICATION OF ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

Gypsy and Traveller Policy

Air Quality

CCTV annual update

Financial Monitoring

Performance and Risk

Aging Well

Leisure update

Health and Safety Policy

Budget Working Group Membership

(The meeting ended at 3.30 pm) CHAIRMAN

Community Policy Development Group — 31 Januamg

33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 5

COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP AGENDA ITEM
28 MARCH 2017

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT GRANTS PROGRAMME 2017/18-2019/20

Cabinet Members Cllr C Slade, Cabinet Member for Community
Cllr R Chesterton, Cabinet Member for Planning and
Regeneration

Responsible Officer  Stephen Walford, Chief Executive & Director of Growth

Reason for Report: To update Members on arrangements for the introduction of grant
awards linked to Service Level Agreements for selected agencies during the period 1
April 2017 to 31 March 2020.

RECOMMENDATIONS that:

1. The recommended three-year funding levels set out in paragraph 2.3 be
approved;

2. An allocation be made for agencies previously in receipt of an annual Strategic
Grant but which applied unsuccessfully to the new Service Level Agreement
grant programme as a transitional arrangement.

3. That the recommended level of grants to other external organisations set out in
paragraph 3.0 be approved.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The allocation of grants provides support to external
agencies delivering services that advance the Council’s corporate priorities. Grant
allocations tend to be most closely aligned to the Economy, Homes and Community
priorities, in particular:

Priority 2: Homes - Continue to work to prevent homelessness;

Priority 3: Community - Support local communities to retain and develop local

facilities and services
The services to be provided will also contribute to the Economy priority by improving the
local economic vitality, increasing footfall and spend in town centres and increasing the
number of people spending money in the district.

Financial Implications: The strategic shift from providing annual grants for the
provision of eleven services, to three-year service level agreements for three service
areas will require the Council to set aside an annual grants budget up to and including
2019/20.

Risk Assessment: Decreases to selected agencies introduced within a short period of
time may lead to closure of a valued service or have a negative impact on the activities
and services provided to residents. It could also result in adverse publicity for the
Council. Significant reductions in established grant allocations may risk a challenge

Page 1 of 7

Page 11



from (@) external organisations under public law and/or (b) the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government.

1.0

11

1.2.

1.3

Introduction

At its meeting on 27 September 2016 the Community Policy Development Group
recommended that:

1. The Museum of Mid Devon Life and Tiverton Tourism Information Service be
moved from the grants budget to a separate tourism budget;

2. A commissioning approach to future grant allocations should be adopted; and

3. Grants to be paid on an annual basis for the duration of the 2015-2020
Corporate Plan.

These recommendations were approved by Cabinet on 27 October 2016.

The commissioning approach taken by the Council consists of (a) ending annual
grant awards for the provision of eleven services (see appendix 1); (b) moving
the budget for the Museum of Mid Devon Life and the Tiverton Tourism
Information Service to a separate tourism budget, and (c) introducing a new
Service Level Agreement Grant Programme for the period 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2020 for the provision of the following services:

1. Welfare Advice and Information;
2. Support for Community Organisations;
3. Community Transport Services;

The service areas selected each have a social and economic benefit to the
district, for example, by ensuring residents receive the welfare payments to which
they are entitled, that people with mobility difficulties can travel to towns and
villages and charitable organisations are able to become more self-reliant and
bring additional funding into the area, supporting local jobs and services. The
move to a Service Level Agreement Grant Programme will enable the Council to
monitor performance more effectively and achieve best value for taxpayers.

The timetable for the introduction of the Service Level Agreement Grants
Programme is set out in the application guidelines as follows:

# Milestone Date/Deadline

1 Application process opens to written submissions Weds 21 Dec
2016

2 Deadline for written submissions Mon 6 Feb 2017,
Spm.

3 Successful applicants notified and invited to give a  Mon 20 Feb

presentation to the Council 2017
4 Applicant’s presentations to the Council 13" Mar 2017

Page 2 of 7

Page 12



5 Successful applicants notified Mar 2017

6 The Council and successful applicant discussions  Mar/Apr 2017
on Key Performance Indicators and funding levels
for Service Level Agreement

7 Service Level Agreement funding commences 1 May 2017

1.4  The awarding of grants to external agencies is a discretionary function of the
Council, it having no statutory responsibility to provide a grant programme to
external organisations.

1.5 There is likely to be a continued expectation that additional reductions to the
grants budget will be required to assist the Council’s overall budget setting
process, and this will be consideration when agreeing grant levels with agencies
selected to deliver against each of the Service Level Agreement areas.

1.6  The possibility of creating a small budget as a transitional arrangement for
agencies that will lose their annual grant award on 1 April 2017 is a further
consideration.

2.0 Service Level Agreement Grant Programme (SLAGP) — Progress to date

2.1 The timetable set out in paragraph 1.3 is being adhered to. The SLA Grants
Programme is a two-stage grant application process with agencies providing a
written submission assessed against a detailed grant criteria. Applications that
met the eligibility criteria were shortlisted and asked to give a presentation to a
Grants Working Group nominated by the Community PDG.

2.2 Nine applications were received in total. Of these:

e Three were shortlisted for the Welfare Advice and Information SLA;
e Three were shortlisted for the Support to Community Organisations SLA; and
e One applicant was shortlisted for the Community Transport Services SLA.

Two further applicants were considered not to have met the eligibility criteria
enabling progression to the presentation phase.

2.3  Presentations were received by the Grants Working Group on Monday 13 March.
Following the presentations, the Grants Working Group is recommending the
following provisional Service Level Agreement allocations::

1. Welfare Advice and Information — an annual budget totalling £34,650
allocated as follows: Age UK Mid Devon (£9,650), Churches Housing Action
Team (£12,500) and the Citizens Advice Bureau (£12,500);

2. Support to Community Organisations — an annual budget totalling £18,000
allocated as follows: Involve — Voluntary Action in Mid Devon (£12,000), The
Onion Collective (£6,000);

Page 3 of 7

Page 13



3. Community Transport Services — an annual budget totalling £22,000
allocated to Tiverton and District Community Transport Association.

Welfare Advice and Information 17-18 18-19 19-20

Age UK Mid Devon £9,650 £9,650 £9,650
CHAT (Churches Housing Action Team) £12,500 | £12,500 | £12,500
Citizens Advice Bureau £12,500 | £12,500 | £12,500

£34,650 | £34,650 | £34,650

Support to Community Organisations 17-18 18-19 19-20
INVOLVE — Voluntary Action in Mid Devon £12,000 | £12,000 | £12,000
The Onion Collective £6,000 | £6,000 | £6,000

£18,000 | £18,000 | £18,000
Community Transport Services 17-18 18-19 19-20
Tiverton and District Community Transport £22,000 | £22,000 | £22,000
Association

£22,000 | £22,000 | £22,000

TOTAL £74,650 | £74,650 | £74,500

The spread of awards to three agencies providing Welfare Advice and
Information services is aimed at ensuring all residents are afforded some
provision, whether aged 50 and over (Age UK), in need of housing support
(Churches Housing Action Team), augmented by the Citizen’s Advice Bureau’s
generic service. This provision is intended to complement the Council’s benefits
and housing advice services.

Awards to two agencies for the Support to Community Organisations SLA will be
arranged as: Involve — Voluntary Action in Mid Devon, ongoing generalist support
and advice for the many charitable organisations operating within the district, with
support for social enterprises picked up via the Council’s contract with the
Business Information Point. To augment Involve’s provision, there is a
recommendation to pay for 20 days consultancy by The Onion Collective to
enable the not-for-profit sector to deliver larger, ‘flagship’ projects across the
district.

The annual award recommended to Tiverton and District Community Transport
Association reflects the predicted increased demand across the district for a
more mobile elderly and infirm demographic, particularly connecting people in
rural settlements to services in Tiverton, Cullompton and Crediton.

Page 4 of 7

Page 14



2.4

2.5

3.0

4.0

The recommendations are provisional on the Council and the recommended SLA
delivery partners agreeing an annual funding level, key performance indicators
and a schedule for reviewing performance. Negotiations with the selected
providers will take place in March and April with a view to finalising each Service
Level Agreement at the start of May 2017.

Further considerations are (a) the ability of the new grants programme to provide
a funding allocation to agencies that previously received an annual grant but
applied unsuccessfully to the SLA programme, and (b) realising a saving in the
annual grant budget. With the recommended awards totalling £223,950 over the
three-year period, the Service Level Agreement Grant Programme offers the
prospective to provide a ‘parachute’ payment to agencies that do not form part of
the new programme, together with a potential net saving of between 11% and
13%.

It is envisaged that contracts setting out performance indicators would be issued
for a three-year period commencing 1 April 2017 and concluding on 31 March
2020, coinciding with the 2015-2020 Corporate Plan. Contracts would have a
termination clause providing an appropriate notice period that could be enacted
by either party. Joint agency reviews would be carried out at regular intervals and
frequent update reports, which could include presentations by the selected
service providers, to the Community PDG. An assessment on whether to
continue with the Service Level Agreement Grant Programme will be made in
year 3 and a report setting out future options presented to the Community Policy
Development Group.

Grants to other external organisations

In addition to the SLA Grants Programme, the Council also provides grants to
four other external organisations; Tiverton Museum of Mid Devon Life, the Tourist
Information Service, the Grand Western Canal and the Exe Rail Partnership. It is
proposed that the Council enters into a 3 year SLA with Tiverton Museum and
the Tourist Information Service at the current level of funding. It is also proposed
that grants for Grand Western Canal and Exe Rail Partnership are retained at
their current level for the next two financial years.

17-18 18-19 19-20
Tiverton Museum of Mid Devon Life £27,500 £27,500 £27,500
Tourist Information Service £4,000 £4,000 £4,000
Grand Western Canal £45,000 £45,000 tbc
Exe Rail Partnership £3,500 £3,500 tbc
TOTALS £80,000 £80,000 tbc

Summary

Page 5 of 7

Page 15



4.1 This report sets out the progress made to date on the introduction of a new
three-year Service Level Agreement Grant Programme to replace the
schedule of annual grant awards.

4.2 The Grants Working Group nominated by the Community PDG has received
presentations from shortlisted applicants for each of the three SLA areas.
The agencies recommended to become partners to the Council over the
period 1 April 2017-31 March 2020 for the delivery of selected services are
listed in paragraph 2.3. All recommendations and appointments are
contingent on the Council and successful applicants agreeing a budget, key
performance indicators and a review framework.

Contact for more information: John Bodley-Scott (Economic Development and
Regeneration Manager, ext; 4363 email: jbodleyscott@middevon.gov.uk).

Circulation of the report: Management Team, Clir C Slade, Head of Communities
and Governance, Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer, Community Development
and Regeneration Manager.

Page 6 of 7

Page 16


mailto:jbodleyscott@middevon.gov.uk

Appendix A — Strategic Grant allocations 2016/17

Table 1 — Strategic Grant Allocations to External Organisations 2016/17

# Agency Grant awarded
1  Age UK Mid Devon £ 4,000
2 | Churches Housing Action Team (CHAT) £ 5,000
3 | Citizens Advice Bureau Mid Devon (CAB) *£ 37,500
4 | Community Housing Aid Night Stop Service £ 2,000
5 | Crediton Arts Centre £ 1,000
6 | Involve — Voluntary Action Mid Devon £11,750
7 | Market Centre Youth Drop-In £ 2,750
8 | Sunningmead Community Association £ 375
9 | Tiverton and District Community Transport (TDCTA) **£ 22,000
10 Tiverton Museum of Mid Devon Life £ 27,500
11 Tiverton Tourism Information Service (TIC) ***£ 4,000

Total £117,875
Notes

* CAB: £14,500 is taken at source from the grant award to cover the cost of rental and
services provided at its offices in Tiverton Town Hall and Crediton Town Hall.

** TDCTA: £5,600 of the grant allocation is held by the Council to cover the cost of
rental space within the Phoenix Lane Car Park, Tiverton.

*** T|C: the Tourist Information Service is provided within and managed by the Tiverton
Museum of Mid Devon Life.

Page 7 of 7

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

COMMMUNITY PDG
28 MARCH 2017

SINGLE EQUALITY SCHEME

Cabinet Member: Clir Colin Slade
Responsible Officer: Catherine Yandle, Audit Team Leader

Reason for Report: To remind Members of the Council’s statutory duties under the
Equality Act 2010, and to seek members’ approval for the revised Single Equality
Scheme and Equality Objective.

RECOMMENDATION(S): That Members approve the Single Equality Scheme
together with the Equality Objective for 2017-18.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Equality Objective reflects the Corporate Plan
priority under Empowering our Community: To work with our partners to maximise
the potential of all our citizens by tackling social disadvantage and deprivation.

Financial Implications: The Single Equality Scheme does not have any financial
implications beyond those identified in individual service equality impact
assessments.

Legal Implications: Not complying with the Council’s statutory duties with regard to
equality could open the Council to legal challenge.

Risk Assessment: Approving the Single Equality Scheme and Equality Objective
reduces the risk of legal challenge.

1.0 Introduction

1.1  Under the Equality Act 2010 local authorities have a duty to have ‘due regard’
to:

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
and

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

1.2 The way a local authority shows it has ‘due regard’ is by evidencing how
equality is considered as part of its decision-making processes. The Single
Equality Scheme indicates how this should be done. (Appendix B attached
with tracked changes.)

1.3 Local authorities also have specific duties under the Act to publish Equality
Information annually and ‘Equality Objectives’ at least every four years. The
Equality Information is attached as Appendix A and will be available on the
Mid Devon District Council website by 31 March 2017.

MDDC Report — Single Equality Scheme v1 Page 19



2.0 Equality Objective

2.1  The Council’s ‘Equality Objective’ set 2 years ago was to focus on the training
needs of staff and members, to ensure they have the right knowledge and
tools to fulfil their responsibilities under the Act:

“To ensure all staff and members of the Council receive the appropriate level
of training on equality issues.”

2.2 Equality and diversity training was rolled out to all staff starting with managers
in November 2014. It is felt that this now needs to be followed up in 2017-18
with some practical actions for both staff and Members to ensure we achieve
this objective going forward; a quick review of our website, templates etc.
indicates this is necessary.

2.3 Thisis in part because case law over the last few years has clarified that
considerations of equality should not only be placed at the centre of policy
development but that bodies subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty, of
which we are one, must apply this duty to the carrying out of any functions of
a public body not just statutory functions.

Contact for more Information: Catherine Yandle, Audit Team Leader

Circulation of the Report: Members of Community Wellbeing PDG, Clir Slade,
Management Team

MDDC Report — Single Equality Scheme v1 Pagé 20



Equality Information

Appendix A

General Population

Population of Mid Devon District

The population of Mid Devon in 2015 was 80,400 previously 77,800 (2011 census).
There are:

- 13,700 (14,600) children aged 0-14.

- 46,900 people of working age.
- 19,000 (15,900) people are aged 65 or over™.

Age band
Oto 4

5to 14
15to 24
25 to 44
45 to 64
65 to 74
75 or over
Total

Total
4,400
9,300
8,300
16,900
22,500
11,000
8,000
80,400
100.0%

%
5.5%
11.6%
10.3%
21.0%
28.0%
13.7%
9.9%
100.0%

Source: ONS via www.devon.gov.uk

Disability
17% of the population reported that they have a long-term illness which limits their

day-to-day activity (2011 Census)

3,245 or 4.2% of the population are claiming Disability Living Allowance (DWP Feb

2012

Number claiming Disability Living Allowance by ward

Ward No.

Boniface 160
Bradninch 85
Cadbury 30
Canonsleigh 100
Castle 175
Clare and Shuttern 115
Cranmore 275
Cullompton North 190
Cullompton Outer 70
Cullompton South 195
Halberton 55
Lawrence 185
Lower Culm 245
Lowman 305
Newbrooke 65

Page 21

Page 1



Sandford and Creedy 115
Silverton 55
Taw 55
Taw Vale 95
Upper Culm 125
Upper Yeo 55
Way 45
Westexe 320
Yeo 130
Total 3245

Source: DWP Feb 2012

Ethnicity

Ethnicity %
White British 74,554 95.89
White Irish 278 0.36
White Gypsy or Irish Traveller 88 0.11
Other White Ethnic Group 1776 2.28
Mixed White and Black Caribbean 132 0.17
Mixed White and Black African 69 0.09
Mixed White and Asian 169 0.22
Other Mixed Ethnic Group 114 0.15
Indian 116 0.15
Pakistani 7 0.01
Bangladeshi 18 0.02
Chinese 167 0.21
Other Asian Ethnic Group 120 0.15
Black African 64 0.08
Black Caribbean 17 0.02
Other Black Ethnic group 13 0.02
Arab 4 0.01
Other Ethnic Group 44 0.06
Source: 2011 Census

Ethnicity %
White 76,696 98.6
Mixed 484 0.6
Asian 428 0.6
Black 94 0.1
Other 48 0.1
Minority Ethnic Groups 1054 1.4

Source: 2011 Census

Page 22

Appendix A

The Black and Minority Ethnic population of Mid Devon is 1.4% of the population with a
further 2.3% ‘Other White Ethnic Groups’ which includes significant number of migrant
workers, mostly from Eastern Europe.

Page 2



Religion & Belief

Religion %

Christian 48,273 62.1%
Buddhist 224 0.3%
Hindu 96 0.1%
Jewish 46 0.1%
Muslim 112 0.1%
Sikh 5 0.0%
Other Religions 366 0.5%
No Religion 22,122 28.4%
Religion Not stated 6,506 8.4%

Source: 2011 Census

Page 23

Appendix A

Page 3



Appendix A

Mid Devon District Council Staff & Memebers Profile (as at 31° March 2015)

(all numbers under 5 are suppressed)

Total Number of Staff: 609

Age No %
Under 21 72 11.8%
21-30 60 9.9%
31-40 105 17.2%
41-50 154 25.3%
51-60 146 24.0%
61-70 57 9.4%
71-80 12 2.0%
Over 81 3 0.5%

609 | 100.0%

61-70 71-800ve Under 21
9% % 1 12%  21-30
A 10%

Gender Profile

Gender No. %

Female 323 53.0%

Male 286 47.0%
609 | 100.0%

Page 24

Page 4



Ethnicity Profile

Ethnicity No. %
Not Disclosed 62 10.2%
White British 467 76.7%
White - 7 1.1%
White Irish 1 0.2%
White Other 2 0.3%
White- Any Other 1 0.2%
Chinese 1 0.2%
Other 68 11.2%
Total 609 100.0%

H Not Disclosed

B White British

B White -

B White Irish

B White Other

B White- Any Other
1 Chinese

m Other

Disability Profile

Disability No. %
without disability 23 3.8%
with disability 4 0.7%
Not Disclosed 33 5.4%
Unanswered 549 | 90.1%

609 | 100.0%

Page 25

Appendix A

Page 5



without  with Not
disability ility, Disclosed
5%

Religion & Belief Profile

Religion No. %
Christian 233 38.3%
Muslim 0 0.0%
No religion 138 22.7%
Not disclosed 169 27.8%
Other 1 0.2%
Unknown 68 11.2%

609 100.0%

unkown

List of Specific HR Policies addressing equality concerns

Parental Leave Policy
Childcare Voucher Policy
Flexible Working Hours Policy
Adoption Policy

Maternity Leave

Paternity leave

Family Friendly Policy

Page 26

Appendix A

Page 6



Appendix A

Redundancy and Redeployment Policy
Recruitment Policy

Relationships in the Workplace Policy
Dignity at Work Policy

Page 27 Page 7



Appendix A

Service Users

Community Involvement
The Council uses a range of methods to engage with residents with different needs

Household Surveys
Street Surveys

Visits to organisations
Tenants Together

Citizen’s Panel

This was recruited as far as possible to match the demographic make-up of the district
every three years. The latest term finished in December 2016. Management Team agreed
that alternative channels should be used to engage residents, and where possible,
engagement online instead of printing paper surveys should be used. Therefore it was
agreed that we should stop using the citizens’ panel in its current form. To replace the
citizens’ panel in 2017 we are implementing “Gov.delivery” (launched 16 March) which is a
simple means of customer engagement with the Council via our website.

Customer First

Customer First provides front-line telephone and meet-and-greet services
In the year 1/4/2015 — 31/3/16 there have been:
e 643 complaints, comments and compliments comments logged with the Compliments

e Of the 289 complaints 44 were upheld (15%)
e There were no complaints of racial discrimination recorded

Page 28 Page 8



Appendix A

Housing

(all numbers under 5 have been suppressed)

Housing Services maintain records on lead tenants - the main householder who holds the
lease with the Council. They do not keep records on every individual living in Council

property.

Number of lead tenants, by Age

Age Number %
16-20 5 0.16%
21-30 277 9.12%
31-40 368 12.11%
41-50 452 14.88%
51-60 503 16.56%
61-70 531 17.48%
71-80 454 14.94%
81-90 322 10.60%
91-100 91 3.00%
101-110 1 0.03%
No Response 34 1.12%
3,038 100.00%
Number of lead tenants by Gender

Gender | Number %
Male 1351 A44.47%
Female 1687 55.53%

3038 100%

Number of lead tenants, by ethnicity
Ethnicity Number | %
White British 1386 | 89.71%
White Irish 10 0.65%
White Accession/Eastern European 10 0.65%
White Other 8 0.52%
Mixed White/Black Caribbean 4 0.26%
Mixed White/Black African 2 0.13%
Mixed White/Asian 0 0.00%
Mixed Other 1 0.06%
Asian/Asian British Indian 0 0.00%
Asian/Asian British Bangladeshi 1 0.06%
Asian/Asian British Other 1 0.06%
Black/Black British Caribbean 1 0.06%
Black/Black British African 1 0.06%
Refused 35 2.27%
Traveller 0 0.00%
Unknown 85 5.50%
Page 29

Page 9



Appendix A

| | 1545 100.00%

Number of lead tenants by disability

Disability Number %

Blind 4 0.52%
Deaf 9 1.16%
Hard of Hearing 38 4.91%
Learning Disabled 42 5.43%
Long-term lliness 234 | 30.23%
Mental Health Issues 122 | 15.76%
Mobility Difficulties 233 | 30.10%
Partially Sighted 23 2.97%
Social Services 55 7.11%
Wheelchair User 11 1.42%
Not Stated 3 0.39%

774 | 100.00%

(respondents were able to indicate multiple disabilities)

Number of lead tenants by religion

Religion Number %
Buddist 3 0.19%
Christian 888 | 57.48%
Hindu 0 0.00%
No Religion 399 | 25.83%
Other 20 1.29%
Refused 62 4.01%
Unknown 171 11.07%
No response 2 0.13%
1545 | 100.00%

Number of lead tenants by sexuality

Sexuality Number %
Heterosexual 751 | 48.61%
LGB 7 0.45%
Other 1 0.06%
Refused 117 7.57%
Unknown 669 | 43.30%

1545 | 100.00%

Page 30

Page 10



Appendix A

List of MDDC Services and Relevance to Equality

Service & Service Areas Overall Areas of high relevance
relevance

Corporate High

Corporate Plan High

Workforce Strategy High

Mid Term Financial Plan High

HR High

Recruitment High

Training High

Employment Policies High Bullying and Harassment Policies,
Disciplinary Procedures, Family Friendly
Policies, Redundancy & retirement
policies etc.

Housing Services High

Choice based letting High

Housing ASB Policy High

Tenant Involvement High

Planned Maintenance Medium

Care Services High

Reactive Housing Repairs & Medium | Disability adaptations

Maintenance

Rent Arrears High

Affordable Housing High

Sheltered Housing High

Homelessness High

Private Sector Housing High Disability adaptations

Customer First High

Front desk High

Phone contact High

Feedback & Complaints High

procedures

Communications Medium

Website administration High

Community Safety High

Community Safety & ASB High Hate Crime

response

Community Development & Medium

Regeneration

Grants & Funding Medium | Council Grants, SLAs

Community Involvement Medium

Economic Development Medium

Equality High

Page 31 Page 11




Appendix A

Estates Management Medium
Public buildings High Accessibility to Council properties
Cemeteries Medium
Play Areas Medium | DDA compliance
Car Parks Medium | Disabled parking spaces
Commercial Properties Low
Waste Management Medium
Waste Collection Medium | Information
Assisted collections
Recycling Medium | Information
Assisted collections
Trade Waste Low
District Officers Low
Leisure Services Medium
Wet side Medium | Accessibility of services and courses
Dry side Medium
Members Services Medium
Members Services Medium | Member recruitment, member training
Electoral Services Medium
Electoral Services Medium | Electoral registration
Environmental Health Low
Food Premises Inspections Low Ethnic restaurants
Air Quality & Contaminated Land Low
Noise & Nuisance Medium
Emergency Planning High Provision for the vulnerable
Licensing Low
Alcohol and entertainment Low
Gambling Low
Taxis Low Wheelchair accessible taxis
Charitable Collections Low
Planning Low
Forward Planning Low LDF Core Strategy
Statement of Community Involvement
Provision of Affordable Housing
Development Management Medium | Gypsy and traveller sites
Provision of Affordable Housing
Building Control Low Any guidance or enforcement of disability
adaptations
Conservation Low
Financial Services Low
Accounts Low

Page 32

Page 12




Appendix A

Procurement Medium Contracts, SLAs
Benefits High

Revenues Low

Council Tax Low

Business Rates Low

Debt recovery High

IT Low

IT Low Website functionality
Landcharges Low

Audit Low

High Risk Services

e Corporate
HR
Housing
Customer First
Community Safety

Page 33

Page 13




This page is intentionally left blank



1.0

2.0

3.0

Appendix B
Single Equality Scheme

Mid Devon District Council’s Single Equality Scheme (SES) sets out how we are
working to implement the equality duties that are set out in the Equality Act 2010.

Section 149 of the Act imposes a duty on 'public authorities’ and other bodies when
exercising public functions to have due regard to the need to:

a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under the Act
b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

C. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

These are the three aims of the general equality duty.

Our Vision

Mid Devon District Council is committed to providing quality services delivered in a
fair and equitable way and to promoting good relations between different groups
within the community. We value the positive contribution that all our residents bring
to the district, and want to work with individuals and groups to continue to improve
our services and to promote equality.

How will we achieve this?
In order to achieve our vision we will:

Seek to understand the needs of our community

Know our customers and their specific needs

Involve the community in changes that might affect them

Develop services that can respond to the requirements of different residents
Develop an inclusive working environment

Ensure equality in procurement and commissioning

Promote equality through working with others

Recognise the needs of specific equality groups

Understanding our community

In order to develop services that meet people’s needs we must first of all
understand our community. The following gives a brief profile of the district.

An equality profile of Mid Devon

Mid Devon is a rural district lying equidistant between the north and south coasts. It
has three principle towns, Tiverton, Cullompton and Crediton, serving an extensive
rural hinterland.

Mar 2017 Page 35



Appendix B
Population

The population of Mid Devon, currently around 79,500%, has grown by 11% over the
last 10 years. Much of this increase is due to inward migration from other parts of
the UK. The largest increase is among those of retirement age, who now make up
23%° of the population. A significant proportion of young people move out of the
area for education or work.

The Black and Minority Ethnic population is now 1.4% of the population with a
further 2.3% ‘Other White Ethnic Groups’ which includes significant number of
migrant workers, mostly from Eastern Europe 5% of the population were born
outside of the UK.?

The key issues for the population of Mid Devon are:

Economy

Mid Devon is an area of low unemployment, but jobs tend to be poorly paid and low
skilled. Average earnings of employed people are almost 8% lower than the
national average - £499 compared to £541 nationally®. Over a third of the resident
population commutes out of the District for work, particularly from the Crediton and
Cullompton areas. There are a high proportion of part-time and self-employed
workers. There are also a growing number of older people who are dependent on
benefits and pensions for their income.

Housing

House prices have more than doubled in the last ten years, far outstripping local
average wages. The average house price in 2015 was £233,123, representing
nearly 10 times the average full time wage. This situation is considerably worse in
the rural areas of the District. This makes it extremely difficult for first time buyers
and people on low incomes. 14% of households live in social housing. There is also
an increasingly aging population who require support to live in their own homes,
and suitably adapted accommodation when they are unable to manage on their
own.

Crime

Mid Devon is an area of low crime. The incidence of all major crime (theft, burglary,
violent crime) is well below national averages. However, concerns about crime and
anti-social behaviour remain high particularly amongst the most vulnerable.

Education

Most Mid Devon schools perform well against national averages, but there are
concerns about the aspirations of young people in certain areas. 62.5% of 16-year
old pupils achieved 5 GCSE or equivalent at grades A* - C including English and
Maths in 2014 compared to 57.9% Devon-wide. However, the proportion of people
of working age who lack any qualifications is higher than the Devon average.

Access

12011 Census
2 Office of National Statistics 2015

Mar 2017 Page 36



4.0

Appendix B

In a rural district access to vital services can be a significant problem for some
people, particularly those on low income. Some 60% of the district falls into the
bottom quartile of deprivation for ‘Access to Housing and Services’. Over half of
rural parishes do not have a post office, and access to scheduled public transport is
a problem in many areas, including the edges of market towns. Despite regional
programmes to increase speeds, broadband speeds remain low in many rural areas
limiting the growth of home-based businesses and increasing the digital divide.

Health

The residents of Mid Devon are generally healthier than the rest of the population in
the UK. Life expectancy is higher than the national average both for men and
women, and mortality rates for all major diseases are lower. However, there are
pockets where life expectancy and mortality rates are considerably lower than
would be expected. There is a growing proportion of over 75s who will put
increasing demands on health and social care services, and a number of people
with physical, sensory and learning disabilities whose needs and those of their
carers, must be met.

Multiple disadvantage

Although Mid Devon generally rates very well in national statistics, small parts of
Tiverton, Cullompton and Crediton do disproportionately badly for income,
education, skills and training when compared to other areas nationally. Mid Devon
ranked just above the half way point on the Index of Multiple Deprivation.

Similarly, some people in Mid Devon, because of their condition or circumstances,
are more vulnerable to disadvantage and poor health outcomes than the rest of the
population. This may be due to their age, gender, physical, sensory or learning
disability, mental illness, sexuality, race, religion or social circumstances. There are
a variety of organisations that provide support to these individuals and their families,
including education and training providers, health and social care agencies,
employers, voluntary sector organisations.

Equality Priorities
From this profile the Council recognises that there are three main equality priorities
for the district:

1. Meeting the needs of an aging population

2. Overcoming the problems to vulnerable individuals caused by rural isolation

3. Overcoming the effects of multiple disadvantage in families with complex
needs.

Knowing our customers — equality monitoring

Mid Devon District Council recognises that it is important to know who uses our
services. By comparing this with what we know about the community as a whole,
we can see if there are any groups who are under-represented, highlighting where
there may be barriers to overcome.

We regularly monitor the age, disability, gender, and ethnicity of our customers.
Where appropriate and relevant, we also monitor religion or belief, and sexual
orientation.

Mar 2017 Page 37



5.0

6.0

Appendix B

The equality information collected can be used to:

» review service delivery

» compare our performance over time

» assist in the development of services in line with people’s needs
» monitor the impact of any service changes.

In line with current legislation we will publish relevant equality information, while
maintaining customer and employee confidentiality. This information will include:
» an equality profile of the district

» workforce information, and

> service-level information for services most relevant to equality.

Involving the community

As part of our commitment to good consultation, we have developed a Community
Engagement Strategy to improve how the Council engages with the community
progress was reported to Cabinet on 2 March 2017 . The Council is keen to make
sure that people from different equality groups take part in consultation, and will try
to find the most appropriate way to consult with them according to their needs.

Mid Devon District Council will:

» work with groups representing the interests of people from different equality
groups to get feedback on proposed service changes particularly relevant to
them

» develop and support forms of consultation that are appropriate to the
communication needs of different groups within the community

» monitor and assess the consultation methods used and where necessary adapt
them to meet the needs of different participants

» publish the results of these consultations and feed them back into our decision-
making processes in an open and responsible way.

Customer feedback

Mid Devon District Council positively welcomes feedback. We want to ensure
residents’ views, whether positive or negative, are noted and their concerns are
addressed. We are aware that the Council’s formal feedback process may be
inaccessible to those sections of the community who have difficulties in accessing
services. The Council encourages helper organisations to act as advocates for a
complainant if necessary.

Developing responsive services

The Council undertakes Equality Impact Assessments on those service most likely
to impact on the wellbeing of individuals. The impact assessment process asks
‘How does this service or policy affect different groups in the community’, and ‘how
can any adverse effects be reduced?’ Each Equality Impact Assessment includes
an action plan on how we will try to reduce any inequalities identified and promote
equality.

A primary factor in making a service accessible is providing information and advice
in a usable and convenient format.

Mar 2017 Page 38



7.0

Appendix B

We seek to ensure that all users:

» know about the relevant services they might need.

» are given support where necessary i.e. with completing forms

» are confident about using and contacting a service and, if necessary,
complaining about it.

We will do this by:

communicating clearly both internally and externally

providing information in plain English

making as many services as internet accessible as possible

offering information in different formats on request

providing interpretation and translation services when deemed appropriate
ensuring that buildings that are open to the public, including leisure and
community facilities, can be accessed and used by all residents

making sure that our employees are trained and supported to deliver the highest
possible levels of customer service in line with this policy.

YV VVVVVYVY

Changing services and policies

Mid Devon District Council has a responsibility to assess the likely impact on
residents and employees of policies or services it is proposing to change or
introduce before they are adopted. This is to make sure that any changes do not
disproportionately affect any particular group, and any adverse impacts can be
reduced as much as possible.

Policies, in particular, are frequently adapted or replaced to reflect changes in the
legal, social and political environment. Our objective is to build equality and diversity
into the policy making process and to make that process clear, open and inclusive.

Developing an inclusive working environment

The Council considers equality and diversity in all aspects of employment, from
advertising vacancies, recruitment and selection, terms and conditions of
employment, training and personal development, to reasons for ending
employment.

We will promote equality in recruitment by:

advertising jobs as widely as possible

providing job details and accepting job applications in alternative formats on
request as appropriate to the needs of the applicant

monitoring recruitment processes and taking action as a result of the findings
acknowledging that recruitment and selection decisions should be based upon
objective, measurable and reasonable selection criteria

asking only for the skills and qualities actually needed to do the job
commitment to equality in employment and in service delivery will be reinforced
in staff induction programmes for new staff

training managers on how to recruit in a non-discriminatory way, making sure
that all job applicants, whether redeployment candidates, existing employees or
people who do not currently work for the District Council, demonstrate that they
are qualified, motivated and competent to do the job.

YV VYV VYV VYV

We will promote equality in disciplinary procedures by:

Mar 2017 Page 39



8.0

9.0

Appendix B

» regularly reviewing our disciplinary and grievance procedures to ensure an
appropriate mechanism is in place to deal with bullying and harassment at work.

We will promote equality in pay and conditions by:
» using a pay structure that makes sure employees are rewarded fairly and
equitably.

We will promote equality in training and development by:

» providing training programmes for staff to raise awareness of equality issues
and assist them in applying equality principles to their role within the Council

» recognising and supporting the potential of all employees by offering
opportunities for training and personal development

» monitoring employee development to make sure that training and development
opportunities continue to be open to all employees.

Ensuring equality in procurement and commissioning

Mid Devon District Council is a major purchaser of services. Every year we spend
over £5 million with businesses so that we can deliver our services. We recognise
that our spending power gives us the chance to influence how others work and to
promote equality. We will:

» require any company or business that wishes to be one of our contractors or
suppliers to demonstrate appropriate consideration in their policies on equality in
relation to employment and service delivery

» seek to encourage any company, business or individual wishing to provide
goods or services to Mid Devon District Council, to contribute to our policy by
implementing fair practices in employment and training

» review our own policies and practices and where necessary make changes to
them to ensure they do not discriminate or place unfair requirements on small
businesses from Mid Devon

» cease issuing contracts to, purchasing from or commissioning any contractor,
business or organisation, where we believe they fail to comply with our values in
relation to equality and diversity

» follow good practice by having a procurement strategy that gives a clear
commitment to equality of opportunity and to tackling discrimination and
disadvantage.

Promoting equality through working with others

The Council recognises that it cannot meet its equality responsibilities without
working closely with other public bodies, community groups and individuals.

Mid Devon District Council will:

» use our standing in the area to help shape public opinion to promote
understanding between different sections of the community

» work with other public, private, voluntary and community groups in Mid Devon to
ensure that equality and diversity policies and plans similar to our own are
adopted and implemented more widely

Mar 2017 Page 40



10.0

11.0

Appendix B

» share information, experience and examples of good practice on equality
through links with other public, private, voluntary and community organisations
in the region

» promote equality and diversity within partnership working and in our dealings
with the media

» involve people from different equality groups in influencing our work and
progress on equality

» learn from the equality and diversity policies and plans of other local authorities
and organisations.

Meeting the needs of specific equality groups

The Council is aware that certain groups within society are particularly vulnerable to
discrimination because of age, disability, gender, marital status, race, belief or
sexual orientation. In order to eliminate discrimination and promote equality we
recognise the need to work with representatives who can advocate on behalf of
particular equality groups in order to develop services that meet their specific
requirements. We also recognise that people are individuals, and that although they
may be included within a particular equality group they also have individual needs
that may differ from the rest of the group. We are committed to dealing with every
resident as an individual with their own particular needs.

Monitoring
We will monitor the progress of this Single Equality Scheme, reporting on it to our
Scrutiny Committee.

Monitoring Impact and Acting on Results

Mid Devon District Council recognises that monitoring is an important way of
assessing the effects of policies in practice and is a vital part of any strategy to
promote equality.

Monitoring will help us check whether our policies, operations and organisational
culture are discriminating against some groups and individuals. This will help us find
out why and how discrimination takes place. Where we see that any of our policies
or procedures have a negative impact we will investigate the reasons for this and
revise them accordingly.

Publishing Results

If Mid Devon District Council is to be successful and keep public confidence, we
need not only to promote equality but also to be seen to be doing so. The Council
will therefore publish the results of its monitoring, assessment and consultation
activities.

Mar 2017 Page 41



Appendix B

Appendices

Appendix 1 Summary of Equalities Legislation

Mid Devon District Council Equality Strategy complies with the following Equal
Opportunities Legislation, Codes of Practice and recommendations:

VVV VVVVVVVVVVVVYVYYVYYVYY

The Sex Discrimination Act 1975

Sex Discrimination (Gender Reassignment) Regulations 1999
The Protection from Harassment Act 1997

Employment Equality (Sexual Orientation) Regulations 2003
Gender Equality Duty

Equal Pay (Amendment) Regulations 1983

Codes of Practice, including on Equal Pay

The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000

Employment Equality (Religion or Belief) Regulations 2003

Rcial and Religious Hatred Act 2006

The Macpherson Recommendations, Stephen Lawrence Inquiry

The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 and 2005

Disability Equality Duty

Special Educational Needs and Disability Regulations 2014

Equal Opportunities Commission and Commission for Racial Equality Codes of
Practices

The Human Rights Act 1998.

The Work and Families Act 2006

Equality Act 2010

Appendix 2 Protected Characteristics

We understand we have a duty to promote equality and eradicate discrimination in relation
to the nine protected characteristics outlined in the Equality Act 2010.

VVVVVYVY VYV

Age

Disability (including people with learning disabilities, people with a mental illness,
and people living with HIV and/or AIDS)

Gender reassignment

Marital status, family circumstances, or caring responsibilities

Pregnant women and mothers with young children (under 5’s)

Race, including nationality, national or ethnic origin, being a traveller or gypsy
Religion or belief

Sex

Sexual orientation

Mar 2017 Page 42



Agenda Item 7
COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP
17 MARCH 2017
Health and Safety Policy review

Cabinet Member(s): Cllr Margaret Squires
Responsible Officer: Michael Lowe (Health and Safety Officer)

Reason for Report: To advise Members that, in accordance with the Health and
Safety at Works Act 1974, the Council’s Health and Safety at Works Policy has been
reviewed by the Health and Safety Committee and that all actions from the report
dated 27 September 2016 are being undertaken.

RECOMMENDATION: Members to note that the Health and Safety Policy was
approved by the JNCC on 12 January 2017, following review by the Health and
Safety Committee and Unison. Members to also note the action points in the
report to the Community PDG have been reviewed by the Health and Safety
Committee and have subsequently been undertaken.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: Health and safety impacts across all aspects of
the corporate plan as there is an obligation on the Council to ensure that its activities
do not adversely affect the health and safety of employees, members of the public,
contractors and others with whom we interact.

Financial Implications: Failure to meet the Council’s obligations could lead to
serious financial implications. The maximum penalty for failing to discharge its duties
are unlimited., In addition, to this would also be the costs involved in any litigation in
the Civil Courts.

Legal Implications: Failing to comply with Health and Safety legislation and
regulations could result in the Council being issued with Improvement/Prohibition
Notices and/or prosecution. The Council would also be at risk of potential civil
litigation.

Risk Assessment: Ensuring the Council has robust health and safety policies and
procedures, which are proactively monitored, will ensure the health and safety of
employees and those who are affected by its actions and also reduce the potential
risk of legal challenges and civil litigation.

1.0 Update

1.1 The Health and Safety Policy was reviewed by the Health and Safety
Committee on 9 January 2017 and, following consultation with Unison,
recommended to the INCC committee for approval.

1.2  The Health and Safety Policy was approved by JNCC on 12 January 2017.

1.3  The future actions in the report to the Community PDG dated 27 September

are now being implemented and form part of the Health and Safety Business
Plan for 2017-18.

MDDC Report — Health and Safety Policy update March ZELaQe 43



2.0 Future actions

2.1 In accordance with the Health and Safety at Works Act 1974, the Safety
Representatives and Safety Committee Regulations, Mid Devon District
Council will continue to review the Health and Safety Policy on an annual
basis, with approval by the JNCC.

Contact for more Information: Michael Lowe, Health and Safety Officer,
mlowe@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Members of Community PDG, ClIr Squires, Management
Team

MDDC Report — Health and Safety Policy update Mar(!hgﬁ-g% 44


mailto:mlowe@middevon.gov.uk

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Corporate Policy

Version Control

Title: Mid Devon District Council Health and Safety Policy
Purpose: Health and Safety

Owner: Stephen Walford

Date: 12" January 2017

Version Number: v2.1

Status: Final

Review Frequency: Annually

Next review date: January 2018

Consultation
This document obtained the following approvals:

Who Date Version
Approved
Management Team 29" November V2.1
2016
H&S Committee 09" January 2017 | V2.1
JNCC 12" January 2017 | V2.1

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pagl%g%$ of 12



Index

Part 1: General commitment

Part 2: Organisation

Part 3: Arrangements

Part 4: Statement of general policy

b pa

PART 1 Statement of general commitment towards health and safety at MDDC

Mid Devon District Council is committed to ensuring high standards of health, safety and welfare
for its employees. It is also committed to ensuring that Council activities do not adversely affect the
health or safety of members of the public, contractors and others with whom we interact. Policies
and procedures on specific areas of health and safety can be found on SharePoint Policies &
Strategies - Home

The Council regards compliance with statutory requirements as the minimum standard. Policies
may extend beyond the legal standard if this is agreed. This general policy sets out the steps that
will be taken to ensure compliance with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and other
statutory provisions, which should lead to a progressive improvement in health and safety
standards over time in accordance with the principles of good health and safety management
described in HSG65 (www.hse.gov.uk/managing/index.htm).

The Council believes that minimising risks to people, equipment and premises is an essential part
of offering quality services in a cost conscious and competitive environment. The successful
implementation of this policy requires the commitment and co-operation of management and all
employees at all levels within the organisation. The Council delegates the responsibility for day to
day operational health and safety management to the Chief Executive, Directors, and Senior
Officers through the normal line management structure.

All managers, supervisors and staff have responsibility for the health and safety of persons and
facilities within their designated areas of control.

All employees should take note when reading this policy that they also have their own legal
obligations under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. Under this law there is the
duty to take reasonable care of their own health and safety and that of others who may be
affected by their acts or omissions at work. Failure to do this could result in prosecution
and a fine. Employees are also required to work in accordance with the provided training
and instructions and to report situations that could be considered unsafe and
shortcomings in health and safety procedures.

The Chief Executive and Directors will be supported in their efforts by provision of competent
health and safety advice from the Corporate Health and Safety Officer. Effective communication
will be maintained with staff and union safety representatives e.g. through the Link, H&S
Committee and Core Briefings. The Council will maintain and improve competence in health and
safety through staff training and development.

This policy will be monitored to ensure that the objectives are achieved. It W|Il be reviewed
regularly and changes made as may be necessary.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pagesdf - o 12



PART 2: Organisation
General

This section sets out the range of duties and responsibilities throughout the Council for the
implementation of this policy.

Service specific policies and operating procedures will be required to supplement this
policy to ensure that the specific risks associated with the activities of each Service are
identified and controlled throughout the diverse range of the Council’s activities.

The following management process will be applied (HSG65) in managing health and safety:

o Plan what it is you want to do
- Policy
- Planning

° Carry out risk assessment first then
implement it
- Risk Profiling
- Organising for health & safety

o Check that the risk assessment is effective
- Measuring performance
- Investigating incidents

e Act by learning from experience
- Reviewing performance
- Learning Lessons

2.1 Councillors

Elected members cannot be responsible on a practical level for the implementation of Health and
Safety arrangements within the Council — this is a responsibility of the Chief Executive and his
senior managers. Members however are required to ensure that overall health and safety
arrangements are in place through the scrutiny process and the receiving of committee reports
e.g. relating to the auditing and performance of the Council’s health and safety management
system. This will also be monitored through the Health and Safety Committee on which a Cabinet
Member is nominated. Any resultant reports that require a decision will be passed through the
Cabinet. : : ’ .

To éssist them, the Chiéf Executive, Directdrs and Senior Ofﬁcérs will provide Counbillors with
professional advice and guidance. This is also available from the Corporate Health and Safety
Officer where needed.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pagleag%z of 12



2.2

Chief Executive

The Chief Executive is responsible for:

The overall implementation of Corporate Policy decisions, day-to-day operations and will
review and decide upon matters within the Council’'s Corporate Policies;

Ensuring that the Council has an effective Health and Safety Committee and for responding
to its recommendations;

Encouraging a positive Safety Culture throughout the organisation by providing leadership
and commitment to high standards of health and safety;

Appraising the effectiveness of this policy and making changes where appropriate;

Ensuring that the attention of Councillors is drawn to information regarding health, safety
and welfare where this has a bearing on their decisions;

Ensuring the Council provides adequate resources to implement and maintain the
effectiveness of this Policy, and that measures are in place for joint consultation regarding
safety between employee and member representatives in accordance with the Safety
Committees and Safety Representatives Regulations 1977

Ensuring that a sufficient number of competent persons are available to give advice on the
application of the provisions of health and safety law as they apply to the activities of the
Council in accordance with Regulation 7 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work
Regulations 1999.

The Chief Executive will be informed by the most appropriate method of any incident, accident or
deviation from this policy.

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) gives the following definition of what a health and safety
culture is:

2.3

The safety culture of an organisation is the product of individual and group values, attitudes,
perceptions, competencies and patterns of behaviour that determine the commitment to,
and the style of and proficiency of, an organisation’s health and safety management.

Organisations with a positive safety culture are characterised by communications founded
on mutual trust, by shared perceptions of the importance of safety and by confidence in the
efficacy of preventive measures.

Directors

Directors will be responsible for:

The implementation of the Council's health and safety policies including the monitoring and
review of the safety performance of each Service within their remit

Where they are identified, implementation of the specific arrangements in Part 3 of this
Policy; ‘ ' ' '

Managing the health and safety performance of their Service in accordance with the
management process outlined above;

Encouraging and sustaining a positive safety culture as described above within their
specific-Service; s - ¢ :
Establishing risk assessment as a positive approach to the management of their Service’s
activities;

Ensuring that arrangements are made within their Service for all staff to be kept informed
on matters of health and safety;

Seeking to ensure, and where necessary document, that adequate resources are made
available within their Service to implement and maintain the Council’s policies for health,
safety and welfare; ‘ ' ' '
Ensuring that for all work and places of work under their control, risk -assessment processes
are applied with equal importance to all other management functions;

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 PageF’é'é 4 of 12



24

Dealing with any wilful disregard by employees of health and safety arrangements
including, where necessary, the use of the Council’s disciplinary procedure;

Working with their managers and team leaders towards ensuring that health and safety
performance requirements are objectively set, monitored and reviewed;

Reporting any known deviance from this Policy to the Chief Executive.

Senior Officers, Supervisors and Team Leaders

Senior Officers, Supervisors and Team Leaders are responsible to their relevant Director for the
health and safety performance of their respective areas. In this they will be required to:

Have sufficient knowledge of the activities under their control, and the Council’s policies
relating to them, to be in a position to assure their competency in managing the Council’'s
Health and Safety Policy and provide positive leadership on health and safety;

Work with the Chief Executive and Directors in achieving a positive safety culture
throughout the authority;

Manage the day to day operations based on safe systems of work with a considered
proactive approach towards managing risks;

Where they are identified, implementation of the specific arrangements in Section 3 of this
Policy;

Ensure through the provision of training and selection that each employee involved is
competent to undertake safely the responsibilities given to them BEFORE they carry them
out;

Ensure that sufficient instruction, information and supervision is given to individual staff
under their management based on the level of risk to which they may be exposed and that
employment of their staff includes the necessary elements of competency (in accordance
with Regulation 13 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999);

Be responsible where required for making returns and reports to the Corporate Health and
Safety Officer — including reports of near misses, accidents or dangerous occurrences;
Ensure that, before the issue of contracts or orders adequate checks are made to confirm
the suitability of the contractor’s health and safety policies, method statements and risk
assessments (Contractor Arrangements Section). This will include assessment of their
arrangements to provide adequate welfare facilities and ability to manage all the activities
they will undertake for, or on behalf of, the Council. All arrangements must be consistent
with those required by the Council for its own staff;

Ensure that policies, safe systems of work and risk assessments specifically tailored to
control the hazards for their functions or work areas are created, implemented, recorded,
monitored, and reviewed as necessary. Employees will be briefed on any risk assessment
that affects their work and given the opportunity to contribute to the assessment e.g.
through ‘Toolbox talks’ before work begins;

Ensure that all statutory records of testing/inspection/maintenance pertinent to their service
area are maintained, and create and record as necessary routine maintenance
arrangements;

Ensure that all new work places and work activities are subject to a risk assessment and
that all identified hazards are documented and measures taken to minimise or control the
risks as far as is reasonably practicable;

Ensure that before employment - a Young Person s Risk Assessment is carried out on any
employee who has not yet reached their 18" birthday in accordance with Regulation 19 of
the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations and its Approved Code of
Practice.* (This is intended to identify whether the individual is suitable for the tasks they
may be given and to limit those tasks where necessary and what training and supervision
will be required to ensure their competency and safety whilst at work);

Ensure that risk assessments are carried out for expectant mother or employees with
special needs Risk management: Health and safety in the workplace;

Consult with the Corporate Health and Safety Officer regarding specific Health and Safety
training needs and, where needed, risk assessments;

Ensure their staff, as far as is reasonably practicable, apply all legal, corporate and
directorate requirements relative to the work of their specific function that may affect health,
safety and welfare at work;

Ensure the provision of welfare facilities (clean water, seating, toilets and washing facilities)
for all work situations under their control and ensure that first-aid, to the standard required

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pagleagﬁe% of 12



2.5

by law, is available and made known to all their staff and periodic checks are made of first-
aid equipment. First aid arrangements can be assessed using the free HSE tool available
on the www.hse.gov.uk website;

Ensure that employees are fully aware of procedures to be followed in the event of a fire;
Ensure that, in circumstances where the use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE has
been identified, the type and quality selected will be appropriate and will adequately protect
that person from the hazards encountered. Supervisors must ensure that those who are
required to wear PPE have been given adequate training in its use, care and maintenance
and, where appropriate, keep the appropriate records.

Corporate Health and Safety Officer

The Health and Safety Officer is responsible for providing advice, support and information on the
application of health and safety legislation within the Council to comply with Regulation 7 of the

Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999. In particular, the Health and Safety
Officer will:

2.6

Assist the Council in establishing and maintaining appropriate monitoring and auditing
systems for health and safety;

Carry out internal ‘Health and Safety Status Reviews’ of each Council Service;

Provide information and advice on request to management and staff on all aspects of health
and safety, including fire safety;

Carry out fire risk assessments on all relevant council properties;

Advise management on the formulation, development and implementation of health and
safety policy and procedures in line with legal requirements and guidance such as that
available from the HSE and other relevant bodies;

Advise on the need for health and safety training, including at induction, and to be a key
participant in developing and, where necessary, delivering such training;

Work with management and staff to ensure that we meet our legal requirement to carry out
risk assessments;

Advise management on the steps needed to achieve adequate control of risks to health and
safety;

Work with managers, staff and safety representatives to ensure that we carry out a
programme of regular safety inspections;

Advise management on systems for recording and reporting accidents and ill-health and be
responsible for the maintenance of adequate records;

Where required, make RIDDOR reports to the HSE;

Investigate accidents and cases of reported ill-health in order to recommend actions to
avoid a recurrence;

Liaise on health and safety with external bodies and enforcing authorities.

Safety Representatives

Recognised Trades Unions have, in consultation with the Council, identified employees to
represent the employees on matters relating to Health, Safety and Welfare at work. Their duties
are defined in part 3 but as representatives on the Corporate Health and Safety Committee they

may:

Investigate potential dangers and hazards.

Examine the cause(s) of accidents.

Investigate complaints relating to Health, Safety or Welfare at work.

Inspect the scene of an accident, dangerous occurrence/near miss or reported case of
disease if it is safe to do so (after consultation with the Corporate Health and Safety

- Officer). : : : :
- Carry out formal inspections of the workplace or part of the workplace. The maximum

frequency of formal inspections will be quarterly, except by written agreement of the Chief
Executive.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 PageF"‘é& 6 of 12



2.7 Health and Safety Committee

The Health and Safety Committee will be the principal forum for the Council to consult both its
employees and the Union on measures taken to ensure, as far as reasonably practicable, their
health, safety and welfare. The Committee will be administered in accordance with the Safety
Committees and Safety Representatives Regulations 1977 and Health and Safety (Consultation
with Employees) Regulations 1996. In its operation the Health and Safety Committee will assist
the Council to discharge its general obligations under the Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974.

The Health and Safety Committee will monitor and review the operation of the Council’s safety
policy and any related arrangements and procedures, receive reports of incidents, trends and any
remedial action taken and where necessary make recommendations to the Cabinet and or other
relevant Council Committees regarding any revisions or additions that may be required. Minutes of
meetings and agreed actions will be kept.

The Health and Safety Committee will consider and make recommendations to the Chief
Executive and Councillors as appropriate concerning priorities and the strategic direction for
MDDC to achieve compliance with statutory obligations and continually improve performance.

An elected member, who acts as the Elected Member’s Health and Safety Champion?, will be a
member of the Health and Safety Committee.

The Corporate Health and Safety Committee will specifically consider the Council’s overall position
and performance in relation to the Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate Homicide Act 2007.

2.9 Employees

The Council commits itself to providing suitable and sufficient health and safety information,
instruction and training as is appropriate to the activities employees carry out.

Individual responsibilities of all employees are as follows:

e In accordance with Section 7 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, it is the duty of
every employee while at work to take reasonable care for the health and safety of themselves
and of other persons who may be affected by their acts or omissions at work and;

e As regards any duty or requirement imposed on the Council under health and safety law, to co-
operate with the Council so far as is necessary to enable it to comply and;

e Not to intentionally or recklessly, interfere with or misuse anything provided in the interests of
health, safety and welfare by the Council e.g. fire or safety equipment.

Note that és the above are stafutory duties failure fo comply with the above will not only reéult in
investigation and, where proven, disciplinary action but also may lead to investigation and
prosecution by the HSE.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pagﬁag?;of 12



PART 3: Arrangements

The Council is required by Regulation 5 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work
Regulations 1999 to make and give effect to such arrangements as are appropriate, having regard
to the nature of its activities and the size of its undertaking, for the effective planning, organisation,
control, monitoring and review of its preventive and protective measures, and to put these
arrangements in writing.

Effective management of health and safety will depend, amongst other things, on the
robust application of proactive risk assessment and leading from this, the implementation
of reasonable mitigating controls to prevent, avoid or minimise the risk of injury. The law
requires a written summary be kept of the risk assessments. At MDDC this would be using
the SPAR system and the Risk Assessment Register on SharePoint.

Corporate policies on health and safety are listed on SharePoint under Corporate Health and
Safety.

3.1 Risk Assessment

Directors will take responsibility for the completion, implementation, monitoring and review of Risk
Assessments for their area of responsibility. Collectively this will cover all activities of the Council.
In practical terms this process will need to be broken down and delegated to competent individuals
who will be in a position to assess the risk of significant hazards that exist within each work area
and report back to the relevant Director who will retain overall responsibility for ensuring the risk
assessment process is completed. The Corporate Health and Safety Officer through his routine
reviews will monitor performance and report back to the H&S Committee any findings.

The Council will apply HSE guidance on Risk Assessment (Risk management: Health and safety
in the workplace) including adoption of the ‘5 Steps to Risk Assessment’ approach for all new
assessments and reviews. The 5 steps are as follows:

Step 1: Identify the Hazards

Step 2: Decide who might be harmed and how

Step 3: Evaluate the risks and decide on precautions
Step 4: Record your findings and implement them

Step 5: Review your assessment and update if necessary

The findings of the risk assessments will be recorded on the Risk Assessment Register and where
they meet the criteria SPAR.

Action required to remove/control risks will be approved by the Director who will, if necessary, take
them to the Chief Executive.

Line Managers will be responsible for ensuring the required actions are implemented as part of
their day-to-day management supervision.

The Corporate Health and Safety Officer will check that the |mplemented actions have
removed/reduced the risks as part of his routine reviews and accident/near-miss investigations.
Feedback will be provided to the relevant Dlrector including the need for a review, which they must
act on without delay. '

Assessments will be reviewed every 12 months or when the work activity changes, whichever is
soonest.

3.2 Consultation with employees
MDDC recognises Unison as the union that represents employees for consultation on Health and

Safety under the Safety Committee and Safety Representatrves Regulations and the Health and
Safety (Consultation with Employees) Regulations.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 PageFé& 8 of 12



3.2 Safe use of plant and equipment

Directors will be responsible for ensuring the Provision and Use of Work Equipment Regulations
1998 (PUWER) - Work equipment and machinery are implemented and adhered to. The Line
Managers shall ensure that equipment is suitable for the task it is being used for and that effective
maintenance procedures are drawn up and implemented.

Employees will report any problems found with plant/equipment to the relevant Line Manager who
will authorise its repair or replacement.

On request, the Corporate Health and Safety Officer can check that new plant and equipment
meets health and safety standards before it is purchased e.g. CE marking.

3.3 Safe use of hazardous substances

The Council will comply with the requirements of the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health
Regulations 2002 (COSHH). http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg136.pdf

Hazardous substances include:

Substances used directly in work activities (e.g. adhesives, paints, cleaning agents)
Substances generated during work activities (e.g. fumes and dust)

Other substances that can be a hazard that employees may come into contact with during their
work, e.g. blood, vomit and faeces, containing biological agents such as bacteria and other
micro-organisms e.g. viruses.

The COSHH assessment process is detailed under a separate Policy. Policies & Strategies -
Home Responsibility for its implementation, monitoring and review rests with the individual
Director and Line Managers for their particular area. The initial priority will be to have an overview
of what substances require assessment and obtain the relevant Product Data Sheet for each
chemical purchased from the manufacturer/supplier.

The COSHH Regulations require the Council to prevent exposure to substances hazardous to
health, if it is reasonably practicable to do so. In achieving this, the Council may:

e Change the process or activity so that the hazardous substance is not needed or generated;
e Replace it with a safer alternative;
e Use itin a safer form e.g. pellets instead of powder, gels instead of liquids etc.;

If prevention is not reasonably practicable the Council will introduce control measures identified by
the COSHH Assessment. Health & Safety - Home. These will be applied in the following order of
priority:

1. use appropriate work processes and systems, engineer controls and provide suitable work
equipment and materials e.g. use processes which minimise the amount of material used or
produced, or equipment which totally encloses the process;

2. control exposure at source (e.g. local exhaust ventilation) and reduce the number of
employees exposed to a minimum, the level and duration of their exposure, and the quantity of
hazardous substances used or produced in the workplace;

3. provide PPE including face masks, gloves, clothing but only as a last resort and never as a
replacement for other control measures which are required.

Following the assessment a written record of any findings and control measures will be retained
and employees provided with suitable and sufficient information, instruction and training to
minimise any identified risk to their health. The Corporate Health and Safety Officer will review
each Service on COSHH and provide feedback.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Paqﬁag §of 12



3.4 Information, instruction and supervision
A Health and Safety Law poster will be displayed at each Council building.

Health and Safety advice is available from the Corporate Health and Safety Officer:

Michael Lowe
Tel 07714 680171
Email mlowe@middevon.gov.uk

Supervision of young workers/trainees will be arranged/undertaken/monitored by Line Managers.

The Council has a duty to provide relevant health and safety information to its employees in any
reasonably foreseeable circumstance. It is for Senior Officers to be aware of this as part of
their Risk Assessment e.g. who needs to know what information? This is of particular importance
where Council employees are working off-site e.g. at locations under the control of another
employer where information may be provided to their employees but not to ours. Where informed,
the Corporate Health and Safety Officer can provide advice on the information required.

3.5 Competency for tasks and training

Human Resources will support induction training for all employees in liaison with Directors and
Line Managers.

Line Managers will arrange job specific training in liaison with the Council’s Learning and
Development Officer.

Training records will be kept by each Service and will be reviewed by the Corporate Health and
Safety Officer and Internal Audit.

Training on health and safety will be identified, arranged and monitored by Senior Officers through
their risk assessment process (see above).

3.6  Accidents, first aid and work-related ill health

Under Regulation 6 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 the
Council will ensure that all its employees are provided with health surveillance as is appropriate
having regard to the risks to their health and safety. The need for health surveillance and its
appropriate level, frequency and type will be identified as part of the Council’'s Risk Assessments
taking into account current HSE guidance. HSE: Health surveillance

Where the assessment requires it, the relevant Senior Officer for the activity will arrange for
appropriate health surveillance in liaison with Human Resources who will maintain a Health
Surveillance Record with the employee’s other personal information.

Names of employees identified as requiring health survelllance will be passed to the Corporate
Health and Safety Officer for his information.

To fulfil its obligations under the Health and Safety Regulations 1981 First aid at work - The Health
and safety (First Aid) Regulations 1981 the Council will maintain an appropriate level of First
Aiders in addition to the minimum legal requirement of identifying Appointed Persons. The level of
cover will be set within a specific First Aid Policy. Policies & Strategies - Home

First aid kits will be provided at each Council building and, subject to risk assessment, appropriate
first aid equipment will be maintained in Council owned vehicles.

All accidents and cases of work-related ill health are to be recorded on an Accident Report Form
and reported under RIDDOR where necessary. The Accident Reporting -Procedure will be -

maintained by the Corporate Health and Safety Officer (found under Corporate Health and Safety
on SharePoint). Health & Safety - Home

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 PageP’ég% 10 of 12



[n addition to this - If there is a work related accident resulting in the death or major injury to an
employee, self-employed person working on Council premises or a member of the public it will be
investigated by the Corporate Health and Safety Officer (or by a nominated person in his absence)

and reported to the HSE, within 10 days (or 15 days if due to an over 5 day absence from work),
How to make a RIDDOR report - RIDDOR - HSE

3.7  Monitoring

To check our working conditions, and ensure our safe working practices are being followed, we
will:

e carry out regular workplace inspections
e investigate any accidents or reports of ill health
e regularly review policies and procedures whenever necessary

The Corporate Health and Safety Officer will be responsible for this.

The Human Resources department, in liaison where necessary with the Corporate Health and
Safety Officer, are responsible for investigating work-related causes of sickness absences. The
relevant Director is responsible for acting on investigation findings to prevent a recurrence.

3.8 Emergency procedures — fire and evacuation
Senior Officers with responsibility for the buildings they are operating in must ensure that:

e there are emergency plans in place to deal with any potential emergency Emergency
procedures
emergency evacuation procedures are developed and implemented

e all fire safety checks are completed in accordance with the fire risk assessment

e emergency evacuation procedures are tested randomly at least twice a year

The Corporate Health and Safety Officer is responsible for:

e ensuring a fire risk assessment is undertaken and implemented for all Council managed
buildings

e supporting the Senior Officers in developing and implementing emergency action plans and
evacuation procedures

e monitoring that all emergency action plans and fire safety checks are being maintained and
reviewed

The Estates Manager is responsible for;

e ensuring all fire fighting equipment meets and is maintained in accordance with BS-5306
e ensuring all fire alarm systems meet and are maintained in accordance with BS-5839

e ensuring that all emergency lighting flttmgs meet and are malntalned in acoordance withr
- BS-5266

e ensuring any faults brought to Estates attention which impact on the safe evacuatlon of
- people from a Council building are given priority. :

Page 55

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Page 11 of 12



Zl o z| ebed

910z Aoljod Aejes pue yilesH DAAN

SWOH - AJoIes % UljeaH AJessadau ataym JOadly o}
UONEIEISE YIM JSOILO S'§H Byl 0} JuSs swioy payajdwod ay Yiim julodaleys ybnouyy pessedoe aie swioj juelg

:poIRI0| SI %00( JUSPIODY

a)is yoea Joy sue|d uojjoe Aousbiaws sy} ul peisi

:p8eoo| si Xoq ple-isii4

se)is DAAW [[E Ul SPJE0GSOloU JEIS

uo pake|dsip sI Jaysod me| A1ajes pue yjeaH

218

P\\ \\E

aAN28X3 JaIyD
piojiepn Usydals

—_——

(1ohkojdw3) , :paubig

Saouejsgns snoplezey Jo asn/abeio}s
ajes pue Asauiyoew ‘Juswdinba jeuoljessdo asn sjes pue soueusjulew
aU) Joj ajgisuodsal ale s1aoWQ Joluag ‘Juswdinba jueld pue san|ioe} Jo

aoueuajulew ay) buunsua Joy Ayjigisuodsal ||eiano sey Jebeuely sajeisg ayl

sJ801yO Joluasg
Jabeuely sajeisy

; saoue)sqns Jo asn/ebelols
ajes ainsus pue ‘Alsulyoew pue juswdinbs ‘jueld ulejurew
pue apinoid ‘suonipuod Bupiiom Ayjeay pue sjes ulejulew o

pa)sa) Alienbal are Asuy

pue sainpasosd ay) Ul paulel} ale Jje}s ainsua o} Jabeuew a)s pajeubisep
8y} Jo Ayjiqisuodsal ay} Sl 3| "SJUBISSISSE YSI D1j109ds pue ¥sil allj JIay}
woly pajeaso aoe(d uj ueld uonenoens Aouabiswse ue sey ais DAAN Yoe3

[0J3U0D I8} Japun
sBuipjing 404 Ajljigisuodsal
YIM S1201O Joluag

‘ ‘Juspioul Jueoubis Jayjo Jo a¥
10 8SBD Ul UojenoeAa — sainpadoid Aousbiswse juswsald

JUBWAA|OAUL UOIUN
yim ssao04d uoneynsuos juiof e Bupie) Aq 9661 suolenbay (seskoldwg yim
uoneynsuo)) A19jes R UileaH a8yl yim seijdwod [1ouno joulsig uoasd PIN

1820
Aisjeg pue yjesH ajelodiod
AJe}al0ag youelg uosiun

D
O

suonIpuod A1ajes ucma
yieay Aep-oj-Aep uo saakojdwa Yiim }Nsuod pue mmmmr@L

slom Jo swalsAs ajes ajesauab o) asay) Buisn pue sjuswissasse
ysu a1endoidde jo uoisdwod ayy Buunsua a|qisuodsal ale SISO JoIuss

SJ201}O Joluas

"1eBeuey Juswdojaasq pue Buiuiea ayy Aq pauoddns wesboid Bujuies) sebeuepy | 3Jom iy} op o} Juajadwod ase saahkojdws ainsus o) ‘Buluien
ay) Jo A1snl[ap By} YiIM 'sIaoiQ JoIuaS 8y} Ag passasse aie spaau Bujulel | juawdojana  Buiuiea a)enbape pue 'UoNEWIOJUI PUB SUOIONIISUI JeS|D 8piacid 0|
3N AOD UOASPPIW®AIaBSpUBYYEeay JadI30 132130 i

A1eJeg pUB Y}[eaH 8y} WoJj JO JUI0daley uo a|qe|ieA. wioj Joday Juspiody
ue Buisn Aj@jeipawiwl 18010 SPH O} peliodal 8q 0} ale SjUSPIOdE ||y

Aajes pue yjesaH sjesodiod

aog|dyiom ay) Ui sysi A1ases pue yyeay ay buibeuew
Aq yijesy || paje|al-34IoMm Jo SBSeD pue sjuaplooe Juanaid o

(¢0p 03 Bulob noA ase jJeypn) sjuswisbuelly/uonay

AL
140 Mpiqisuodsay

Aoijod [essueh jojuswsalels

a2130e4d ojui 1nd si Ao1j0d siy3 Bunnsus 10y Aljigisuodsas Aep-o3-Aep sey

1921340 Mases pUE U3[eoH o3ei0d100 oMo [9BYDIN

fyajes pue yjjeay Joy Ayjiqisuodsal [eUl) pue [|BJBAO SBy

9AIIN03X3 Ja1YD plojeM usydels

[launog l3sig uoAsQ@ PI

: ~Jo} sjuswisbuelie

pue Aoijod jelsusb jo Juswajels sy} si Siyl




DISTRICT COUNCIL

Corporate Policy

Version Control

Title: Mid Devon District Council Health and Safety Policy
Purpose: Health and Safety

Owner: Stephen Walford

- Date: 12" January 2017

Version Number: v2.1

Status: Final

Review Frequency: Annually

Next review date: January 2018

Consultation
This document obtained the following approvals:

Who Date Version
Approved
Management Team 29" November V2.1
2016
H&S Committee 09" January 2017 | V2.1
JNCC 12™ January 2017 | V2.1

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pagl%é] of 12



Index

Part 1: General commitment

Part 2: Organisation

Part 3: Arrangements

Part 4: Statement of general policy

N =

PART 1 Statement of general commitment towards health and safety at MDDC

Mid Devon District Council is committed to ensuring high standards of health, safety and welfare
for its employees. It is also committed to ensuring that Council activities do not adversely affect the
health or safety of members of the public, contractors and others with whom we interact. Policies
and procedures on specific areas of health and safety can be found on SharePoint Policies &
Strategies - Home

The Council regards compliance with statutory requirements as the minimum standard. Policies
may extend beyond the legal standard if this is agreed. This general policy sets out the steps that
will be taken to ensure compliance with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and other
statutory provisions, which should lead to a progressive improvement in health and safety
standards over time in accordance with the principles of good health and safety management
described in HSG65 (www.hse.gov.uk/managing/index.htm).

The Council believes that minimising risks to people, equipment and premises is an essential part
of offering quality services in a cost conscious and competitive environment. The successful
implementation of this policy requires the commitment and co-operation of management and all
employees at all levels within the organisation. The Council delegates the responsibility for day to
day operational health and safety management to the Chief Executive, Directors, and Senior
Officers through the normal line management structure.

All managers, supervisors and staff have responsibility for the health and safety of persons and
facilities within their designated areas of control.

All employees should take note when reading this policy that they also have their own legal
obligations under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. Under this law there is the
duty to take reasonable care of their own health and safety and that of others who may be
affected by their acts or omissions at work. Failure to do this could result in prosecution
and a fine. Employees are also required to work in accordance with the provided training
and instructions and to report situations that could be considered unsafe and
shortcomings in health and safety procedures.

The Chief Executive and Directors will be supported in their efforts by provision of competent
health and safety advice from the Corporate Health and Safety Officer. Efféctive communication
will be maintained with staff and union safety representatives e.g. through the Link, H&S
Committee and Core Briefings. The Council will malntaln and improve competence in health and
safety through staff training and development.

This policy will be monitored to ensure that the objectives are achieved. It WI|| be reviewed
regularly and changes made as may be necessary.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pag@@82 of 12



PART 2: Organisation
General

This section sets out the range of duties and responsibilities throughout the Council for the
implementation of this policy.

Service specific policies and operating procedures will be required to supplement this
policy to ensure that the specific risks associated with the activities of each Service are
identified and controlled throughout the diverse range of the Council’s activities.

The following management process will be applied (HSG65) in managing health and safety:

° Plan what it is you want to do
- Policy
- Planning

° Carry out risk assessment first then
implement it
- Risk Profiling
- Organising for health & safety

° Check that the risk assessment is effective
- Measuring performance
- Investigating incidents

e  Act by learning from experience
- Reviewing performance
- Learning Lessons

2.1 Councillors

Elected members cannot be responsible on a practical level for the implementation of Health and
Safety arrangements within the Council — this is a responsibility of the Chief Executive and his
senior managers. Members however are required to ensure that overall health and safety
arrangements are in place through the scrutiny process and the receiving of committee reports
e.g. relating to the auditing and performance of the Council’s health and safety management
system. This will also be monitored through the Health and Safety Committee on which a Cabinet
Member is nominated. Any resultant reports that require a decision will be passed through the
Cabinet. ;

Td assist them, the Chjief Executive, Directbrs and Senior Oﬁicérs will provide Couhcillors with
professional advice and guidance. This is also available from the Corporate Health and Safety
Officer where needed.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pag@aé% of 12



2.2

Chief Executive

The Chief Executive is responsible for:

The overall implementation of Corporate Policy decisions, day-to-day operations and will
review and decide upon matters within the Council’'s Corporate Policies;

Ensuring that the Council has an effective Health and Safety Committee and for responding
to its recommendations;

Encouraging a positive Safety Culture throughout the organisation by providing leadership
and commitment to high standards of health and safety;

Appraising the effectiveness of this policy and making changes where appropriate;

Ensuring that the attention of Councillors is drawn to information regarding health, safety
and welfare where this has a bearing on their decisions;

Ensuring the Council provides adequate resources to implement and maintain the
effectiveness of this Policy, and that measures are in place for joint consultation regarding
safety between employee and member representatives in accordance with the Safety
Committees and Safety Representatives Regulations 1977

Ensuring that a sufficient number of competent persons are available to give advice on the
application of the provisions of health and safety law as they apply to the activities of the
Council in accordance with Regulation 7 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work
Regulations 1999.

The Chief Executive will be informed by the most appropriate method of any incident, accident or
deviation from this policy.

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) gives the following definition of what a health and safety
culture is:

2.3

The safety culture of an organisation is the product of individual and group values, attitudes,
perceptions, competencies and patterns of behaviour that determine the commitment to,
and the style of and proficiency of, an organisation’s health and safety management.

Organisations with a positive safety culture are characterised by communications founded
on mutual trust, by shared perceptions of the importance of safety and by confidence in the
efficacy of preventive measures.

Directors

Directors will be responsible for:

The implementation of the Council's health and safety policies including the monitoring and
review of the safety performance of each Service within their remit

Where they are identified, |mplementat|on of the specmc arrangements |n Part 3 of this
Policy;

Managing the health and safety performance of their-Service in accordance with the
management process outlined above,

Encouraging and sustalnlng a posmve safety culture as described above within their
specific Service; :
Establishing risk assessment as a positive approach to the management of their Service’s
activities;

Ensuring that arrangements are made within their Service for all staff to be kept informed
on matters of health and safety;

Seeking to ensure, and where necessary document, that adequate resources are made
available within their Serwce to implement and maintain the CounC|I s policies for health
safety and welfare;

Ensuring that for all work and places of work under their control, risk assessment processes
are applied with equal importance to all other management functions;

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 PageP@Q 4 of 12



24

Dealing with any wilful disregard by employees of health and safety arrangements
including, where necessary, the use of the Council’s disciplinary procedure;

Working with their managers and team leaders towards ensuring that health and safety
performance requirements are objectively set, monitored and reviewed;

Reporting any known deviance from this Policy to the Chief Executive.

Senior Officers, Supervisors and Team Leaders

Senior Officers, Supervisors and Team Leaders are responsible to their relevant Director for the
health and safety performance of their respective areas. In this they will be required to:

Have sufficient knowledge of the activities under their control, and the Council’s policies
relating to them, to be in a position to assure their competency in managing the Council’s
Health and Safety Policy and provide positive leadership on health and safety;

Work with the Chief Executive and Directors in achieving a positive safety culture
throughout the authority;

Manage the day to day operations based on safe systems of work with a considered
proactive approach towards managing risks;

Where they are identified, implementation of the specific arrangements in Section 3 of this
Policy;

Ensure through the provision of training and selection that each employee involved is
competent to undertake safely the responsibilities given to them BEFORE they carry them
out;

Ensure that sufficient instruction, information and supervision is given to individual staff
under their management based on the level of risk to which they may be exposed and that
employment of their staff includes the necessary elements of competency (in accordance
with Regulation 13 of the Management of Health and Safety at WWork Regulations 1999):

Be responsible where required for making returns and reports to the Corporate Health and
Safety Officer — including reports of near misses, accidents or dangerous occurrences;
Ensure that, before the issue of contracts or orders adequate checks are made to confirm
the suitability of the contractor’s health and safety policies, method statements and risk
assessments (Contractor Arrangements Section). This will include assessment of their
arrangements to provide adequate welfare facilities and ability to manage all the activities
they will undertake for, or on behalf of, the Council. All arrangements must be consistent
with those required by the Council for its own staff;

Ensure that policies, safe systems of work and risk assessments specifically tailored to
control the hazards for their functions or work areas are created, implemented, recorded,
monitored, and reviewed as necessary. Employees will be briefed on any risk assessment
that affects their work and given the opportunity to contribute to the assessment e.g.
through ‘Toolbox talks’ before work begins;

Ensure that all statutory records of testing/inspection/maintenance pertinent to their service
area are maintained, and create and record as necessary routine maintenance
arrangements;

Ensure that all new work places and work activities are subject to a risk assessment and
that all identified hazards are documented and measures taken to minimise or control the
risks as far as is reasonably practicable;

Ensure that before employment - a Young Person s Risk Assessment is carried out on any
employee who has not yet reached their 18™ birthday in accordance with Regulation 19 of
the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations and its Approved Code of

* Practice. (This is intended to identify- whether the individual is suitable for the tasks they

may be given and to limit those tasks where necessary and what training and supervision
will be required to ensure their competency and safety whilst at work);

Ensure that risk assessments are carried out for expectant mother or employees with
special needs Risk management: Health and safety in the workplace;

Consult with the Corporate Health and Safety Officer regarding specific Health and Safety
training needs and, where needed, risk assessments;

"Ensure their staff, as far as is reasonably practicable, apply all legal, corporate and
- directorate requirements relative to the work of their specific function that may affect health,

safety and welfare at work;

Ensure the provision of welfare facilities (clean water, seating, toilets and washing facilities)
for all work situations under their control and ensure that first-aid, to the standard required

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Page.Qk o 12



2.5

by law, is available and made known to all their staff and periodic checks are made of first-
aid equipment. First aid arrangements can be assessed using the free HSE tool available
on the www.hse.gov.uk website;

Ensure that employees are fully aware of procedures to be followed in the event of a fire;
Ensure that, in circumstances where the use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE has
been identified, the type and quality selected will be appropriate and will adequately protect
that person from the hazards encountered. Supervisors must ensure that those who are
required to wear PPE have been given adequate training in its use, care and maintenance
and, where appropriate, keep the appropriate records.

Corporate Health and Safety Officer

The Health and Safety Officer is responsible for providing advice, support and information on the
application of health and safety legislation within the Council to comply with Regulation 7 of the
Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999. In particular, the Health and Safety

Officer will:

2.6

Assist the Council in establishing and maintaining appropriate monitoring and auditing
systems for health and safety;

Carry out internal ‘Health and Safety Status Reviews’ of each Council Service;

Provide information and advice on request to management and staff on all aspects of health
and safety, including fire safety;

Carry out fire risk assessments on all relevant council properties;

Advise management on the formulation, development and implementation of health and
safety policy and procedures in line with legal requirements and guidance such as that
available from the HSE and other relevant bodies;

Advise on the need for health and safety training, including at induction, and to be a key
participant in developing and, where necessary, delivering such training;

Work with management and staff to ensure that we meet our legal requirement to carry out
risk assessments;

Advise management on the steps needed to achieve adequate control of risks to health and
safety;

Work with managers, staff and safety representatives to ensure that we carry out a
programme of regular safety inspections;

Advise management on systems for recording and reporting accidents and ill-health and be
responsible for the maintenance of adequate records;

Where required, make RIDDOR reports to the HSE;

Investigate accidents and cases of reported ill-health in order to recommend actions to
avoid a recurrence;

Liaise on health and safety with external bodies and enforcing authorities.

Safety Representatives

Recognised Trades Unions have, in consultation with the Council, identified employees to
represent the employees on matters relating to Health, Safety and Welfare at work. Their duties
are defined in part 3 but as representatives on the Corporate Health and Safety Committee they

may:

Investigate potential dangers and hazards.

Examine the cause(s) of accidents.

Investigate complaints relating to Health, Safety or Welfare at work.

Inspect the scene of an accident, dangerous occurrence/near miss or reported case of
disease if it is safe to do so (after consultation with the Corporate Health and Safety
Officer). : : : :

Carry out formal inspections of the workplace or part of the workplace. The maximum
frequency of formal inspections will be quarterly, except by written agreement of the Chief
Executive.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pager@2s of 12



2.7 Health and Safety Committee

The Health and Safety Committee will be the principal forum for the Council to consult both its
employees and the Union on measures taken to ensure, as far as reasonably practicable, their
health, safety and welfare. The Committee will be administered in accordance with the Safety
Committees and Safety Representatives Regulations 1977 and Health and Safety (Consultation
with Employees) Regulations 1996. In its operation the Health and Safety Committee will assist
the Council to discharge its general obligations under the Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974.

The Health and Safety Committee will monitor and review the operation of the Council’s safety
policy and any related arrangements and procedures, receive reports of incidents, trends and any
remedial action taken and where necessary make recommendations to the Cabinet and or other
relevant Council Committees regarding any revisions or additions that may be required. Minutes of
meetings and agreed actions will be kept.

The Health and Safety Committee will consider and make recommendations to the Chief
Executive and Councillors as appropriate concerning priorities and the strategic direction for
MDDC to achieve compliance with statutory obligations and continually improve performance.

An elected member, who acts as the Elected Member’'s Health and Safety Champion?, will be a
member of the Health and Safety Committee.

The Corporate Health and Safety Committee will specifically consider the Council’s overall position
and performance in relation to the Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate Homicide Act 2007.

2.8 Employees

The Council commits itself to providing suitable and sufficient health and safety information,
instruction and training as is appropriate to the activities employees carry out.

Individual responsibilities of all employees are as follows:

e In accordance with Section 7 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, it is the duty of
every employee while at work to take reasonable care for the health and safety of themselves
and of other persons who may be affected by their acts or omissions at work and;

e As regards any duty or requirement imposed on the Council under health and safety law, to co-
operate with the Council so far as is necessary to enable it to comply and;

e Not to intentionally or recklessly, interfere with or misuse anything provided in the interests of
health, safety and welfare by the Council e.g. fire or safety equipment.

Note that as the above are statutory duties failure to comply with the above will not only result in
investigation and, where proven, disciplinary action but also may lead to investigation and .
prosecution by the HSE.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pag%ggg of 12



PART 3: Arrangements

The Council is required by Regulation 5 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work
Regulations 1999 to make and give effect to such arrangements as are appropriate, having regard
to the nature of its activities and the size of its undertaking, for the effective planning, organisation,
control, monitoring and review of its preventive and protective measures, and to put these
arrangements in writing.

Effective management of health and safety will depend, amongst other things, on the
robust application of proactive risk assessment and leading from this, the implementation
of reasonable mitigating controls to prevent, avoid or minimise the risk of injury. The law
requires a written summary be kept of the risk assessments. At MDDC this would be using
the SPAR system and the Risk Assessment Register on SharePoint.

Corporate policies on health and safety are listed on SharePoint under Corporate Health and
Safety.

3.1 Risk Assessment

Directors will take responsibility for the completion, implementation, monitoring and review of Risk
Assessments for their area of responsibility. Collectively this will cover all activities of the Council.
In practical terms this process will need to be broken down and delegated to competent individuals
who will be in a position to assess the risk of significant hazards that exist within each work area
and report back to the relevant Director who will retain overall responsibility for ensuring the risk
assessment process is completed. The Corporate Health and Safety Officer through his routine
reviews will monitor performance and report back to the H&S Committee any findings.

The Council will apply HSE guidance on Risk Assessment (Risk management: Health and safety
in the workplace) including adoption of the ‘5 Steps to Risk Assessment’ approach for all new
assessments and reviews. The 5 steps are as follows:

Step 1: Identify the Hazards

Step 2: Decide who might be harmed and how

Step 3: Evaluate the risks and decide on precautions
Step 4: Record your findings and implement them

Step 5: Review your assessment and update if necessary

The findings of the risk assessments will be recorded on the Risk Assessment Register and where
they meet the criteria SPAR.

Action required to remove/control risks will be approved by the Director who will, if necessary, take
them to the Chief Executive.

Line Managers will be responsible for ensuring the required actions are implemented as part of
their day-to-day management supervision. :

The Corporate Health and S,afety Officer will check that the implemented actions have
removed/reduced the risks as part of his routine reviews and accident/near-miss investigations.
Feedback will be provided to the relevant Dlrector including the need for a review, which they must
act on without delay.

Assessments will be reviewed every 12 months or when the work activity changes, whichever is
soonest.

3.2 Consultation with employees
MDDC recognises Unison as the union that represents employees for consultation on Health and

Safety under the Safety Committee and Safety Representatlves Regulations and the Health and
Safety (Consultation with Employees) Regulations.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Page&ds o 12



3.2  Safe use of plant and equipment

Directors will be responsible for ensuring the Provision and Use of Work Equipment Regulations
1998 (PUWER) - Work equipment and machinery are implemented and adhered to. The Line
Managers shall ensure that equipment is suitable for the task it is being used for and that effective
maintenance procedures are drawn up and implemented.

Employees will report any problems found with plant/equipment to the relevant Line Manager who
will authorise its repair or replacement.

On request, the Corporate Health and Safety Officer can check that new plant and equipment
meets health and safety standards before it is purchased e.g. CE marking.

3.3 Safe use of hazardous substances

The Council will comply with the requirements of the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health
Regulations 2002 (COSHH). http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg136.pdf

Hazardous substances include:

Substances used directly in work activities (e.g. adhesives, paints, cleaning agents)
Substances generated during work activities (e.g. fumes and dust)
Other substances that can be a hazard that employees may come into contact with during their

work, e.g. blood, vomit and faeces, containing biological agents such as bacteria and other
micro-organisms e.g. viruses.

The COSHH assessment process is detailed under a separate Policy. Policies & Strategies -
Home Responsibility for its implementation, monitoring and review rests with the individual
Director and Line Managers for their particular area. The initial priority will be to have an overview
of what substances require assessment and obtain the relevant Product Data Sheet for each
chemical purchased from the manufacturer/supplier.

The COSHH Regulations require the Council to prevent exposure to substances hazardous to
health, if it is reasonably practicable to do so. In achieving this, the Council may:

e Change the process or activity so that the hazardous substance is not needed or generated;
o Replace it with a safer alternative;

e Use itin a safer form e.g. pellets instead of powder, gels instead of liquids etc;

If prevention is not reasonably practicable the Council will introduce control measures identified by
the COSHH Assessment. Health & Safety - Home. These will be applied in the following order of
priority:

1. use appropriate work processes and systems, engineer controls and provide suitable work
equipment and materials e.g. use processes which minimise the amount of material used or
produced, or equipment which totally encloses the process;

2. control exposure at source (e.g. local exhaust ventilation) and reduce the number of
employees exposed to a minimum, the level and duration of their exposure, and the quantity of
hazardous substances used or produced in the workplace;

3. provide PPE including face masks, gloves, clothing but only as a last resort and never as a
replacement for other control measures which are required.

Following the assessment a written record of any findings and control measures will be retained
and employees provided with suitable and sufficient information, instruction and training to
minimise any identified risk to their health. The Corporate Health and Safety Officer will review
each Service on COSHH and provide feedback.

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pagﬁa@@ of 12



3.4 Information, instruction and supervision
A Health and Safety Law poster will be displayed at each Council building.

Health and Safety advice is available from the Corporate Health and Safety Officer:

Michael Lowe
Tel 07714 680171
Email mlowe@middevon.gov.uk

Supervision of young workers/trainees will be arranged/undertaken/monitored by Line Managers.

The Council has a duty to provide relevant health and safety information to its employees in any
reasonably foreseeable circumstance. It is for Senior Officers to be aware of this as part of
their Risk Assessment e.g. who needs to know what information? This is of particular importance
where Council employees are working off-site e.g. at locations under the control of another
employer where information may be provided to their employees but not to ours. Where informed,
the Corporate Health and Safety Officer can provide advice on the information required.

3.5 Competency for tasks and training

Human Resources will support induction training for all employees in liaison with Directors and
Line Managers.

Line Managers will arrange job specific training in liaison with the Council’s Learning and
Development Officer.

Training records will be kept by each Service and will be reviewed by the Corporate Health and
Safety Officer and Internal Audit.

Training on health and safety will be identified, arranged and monitored by Senior Officers through
their risk assessment process (see above).

3.6 Accidents, first aid and work-related ill health

Under Regulation 6 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 the
Council will ensure that all its employees are provided with health surveillance as is appropriate
having regard to the risks to their health and safety. The need for health surveillance and its
appropriate level, frequency and type will be identified as part of the Council’s Risk Assessments
taking into account current HSE guidance. HSE: Health surveillance

Where the assessment requires it, the relevant Senior Officer for the activity will arrange for
appropriate health surveillance in liaison with Human Resources who will maintain a Health
Surveillance Record with the employee’s other personal information.

Names of employees identified as requiring health survelllance will be passed to the Corporate
Health and Safety Officer for his information.

To fulfil its obligations under the Health and Safety Regulations 1981 First aid at work - The Health
and safety (First Aid) Requlations 1981 the Council will maintain an appropriate level of First
Aiders in addition to the minimum legal requirement of identifying Appointed Persons. The level of
cover will be set within a specific First Aid Policy. Policies & Strategies - Home

First aid kits will be provided at each Council building and, subject to risk assessment, appropriate
first aid equipment will be maintained in Council owned vehicles.

All accidents and cases of work-related ill health are to be recorded on an Accident Report Form
and reported under RIDDOR where necessary. The Accident Reporting Procedure will be -
maintained by the Corporate Health and Safety Officer (found under Corporate Health and Safety
on SharePoint). Health & Safety - Home

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Pager&f 10 of 12



In addition to this - If there is a work related accident resulting in the death or major injury to an
employee, self-employed person working on Council premises or a member of the public it will be
investigated by the Corporate Health and Safety Officer (or by a nominated person in his absence)

and reported to the HSE, within 10 days (or 15 days if due to an over 5 day absence from work)
How to make a RIDDOR report - RIDDOR - HSE

3.7  Monitoring

To check our working conditions, and ensure our safe working practices are being followed, we
will:

e carry out regular workplace inspections
e investigate any accidents or reports of ill health
o regularly review policies and procedures whenever necessary

The Corporate Health and Safety Officer will be responsible for this.

The Human Resources department, in liaison where necessary with the Corporate Health and
Safety Officer, are responsible for investigating work-related causes of sickness absences. The
relevant Director is responsible for acting on investigation findings to prevent a recurrence.

3.8 Emergency procedures — fire and evacuation
Senior Officers with responsibility for the buildings they are operating in must ensure that:

o there are emergency plans in place to deal with any potential emergency Emergency
procedures

e emergency evacuation procedures are developed and implemented

o all fire safety checks are completed in accordance with the fire risk assessment

e emergency evacuation procedures are tested randomly at least twice a year

The Corporate Health and Safety Officer is responsible for:

e ensuring a fire risk assessment is undertaken and implemented for all Council managed
buildings

o supporting the Senior Officers in developing and implementing emergency action plans and
evacuation procedures

e monitoring that all emergency action plans and fire safety checks are being maintained and
reviewed

The Estates Manager is responsible for;

e ensuring all fire fighting equipment meets and is maintained in accordance with BS-5306

e . ensuring all fire alarm systems meet and are maintained in accordance with BS-5839

o - ensuring that all emergency lighting fittings meet and are maintained in accordance with
- BS-5266 - 2

e ensuring any faults brought to Estates attention which impact on the safe evacuation of
- people from a Council building are given priority

MDDC Health and Safety Policy 2016 Page 8.1 of 12



zZl Jo g\ abed

910z Adllod A19jes pue yileaH OQadw

SWOH - KI9IES 3 YileaH AJessadau asaym YOadly 0
UoljE|EOSa UM J22IHO SRH 2U) 0} JUas Swioj paja|dwiod auyj Yim julodaeys yBnoJy) pessadoe e SwJoj Juelg

:p21220] SI %00J JUSpPIddY

a)is yoes Joj sueld uonoe Aouabiaws ayj ul pasi]

:pa1800] SI X0q ple-isJid

SalIs DAAW I[e Ul SpJE0gadiou Jels

uo pake(dsip siJajsod me|'Ajsjes pue yjjeaH

\\\\ \\ L] :2led

annosXd JaIuD
plojjep usydals

—_—

(19hojdwiz) . :paubls

SeouB)sqns snopJezey jo asn/abelols
ajes pue Alaujyoew ‘juswdinba [euonesado asn ajes pue adUBUSIUIBW
auy) Joj s|qisuodsal ale s18dljQ Joluag ‘Justdinbs Jue|d pue saliljioey JO

aoueuguieW 8y} Bupnsua Joj Ajjiqisuodsal (jesano sey Jabeuel seiels3 ayL

s1901J0 Joluss
labeuely sajeis3y

. saoue)sqns jo asn/abelols
3jes ainsus pue ‘Asaujyoew pue Juswdinba ‘jueld ulejuleWw
pue apirosd * mco;_ucoo Buiyom AU)EaY pue ajes UlejuleW O |

pa)sa) Ale|nbas aie Aay)

pue sainpasold ay) u paules} aJe yels ainsus o) Jebeuew ayis pajeubisap
a3y} Jo Ayiqisuodsal ayj st )| 'SJUBLUSSISSE X3Sl O}yloads pU. s aulj Jiayy
woJj pajeaso aoe(d uj ueld uonenoeas Aouablawsa ue sey ajis Jad yoed

]0J3U0D JI3Y) Jspun
sBuipjing Joj Ayjiqisuodsal
UiIM SJ301JO JolusS

‘ ‘Juaploul Emo_tcmﬁ 13uj0 Jo ally
JO ©SBD U] UOI}ENJBAS — S8Jnpado.d Kouabawa juswsa|dw

JUSWAA|OAL] UOIUN

ym ssaooad uoneynsuoa juiof e Buse) Aq 9661 suonelnbay (s@afoldwg Yim
uope)nsuo)) A18jes B YieaH ayj yim saidwod (1ounog JoMsig uoAsq PIN

1990
fjejeg pue yjjeaH 9jesodiod
Alejaloag youelg uosiun

suonpuod Ajejes pue
yeay Aep-oj-Aep uo saakojdwa Yjim Jjnsuod pue abebug

yiom Jo swayshs ajes ajesauab o) asay) Buisn pue sjusWssasse

ysi1 ajeidosdde jo uopa|dwod ay) Buunsua s|qisuodsal aie SI8dIO JoIUSS
‘JoBeueyy Juswdojanag pue BujuiesT ay) Aq peloddns weiboid Bujuien
ay) JO AJanijap aU) Yiim 'sisoli0 Joluas ay) Aq passasse aJe spaau Bujuie

sJ2o1jO Jouas
1abeuepy
juswdojanaq ¥ buiuies

.

yiom Jiay) op 0y jusjadwod ale saahojdwa asnsua o} 'Buiuiel
ajenbape pue 'UOJEBWIOJUI PUB SUOHONISU JBS[D apinosd o

SN ACD UOAS PRI @AIajespuBYleay Jadllio
f19jBS pue YjjeaH ay) WoJj 1o Julodaseys uo s|qe(iene Wwio) Joday JUsplody
ue Buisn Ajajelpawil J3oI40 SRH 0} payodal eq o} aJe sjusplode ||

1390
fajes pue yjesH ajesodiod

aoe|dyiom auy Ul syisii Ajayes pue ujjeay sy Buibeuew
Aq yi[esY ||l PaTB|BI-}IOM JO SISED pUB Sjuapjooe juanaid oL

(¢.0p 03 BuioB noA aJe Jeyp) sjuswabuelly/uoloy

apiL
:J0 Aiqisuodsay

Aoijod [esauab jo juswalels

aonoeld ojul 3nd s Aoijod siyj Butinsus Joy Ajiiqisuodsal Aep-03-Aep sey

189130 Aj9JES pUE UiesH ajeiodioD amoT [9EYDIA

f3ajes pue yjeay Joy Ajjiqisuodsal jeulj pue ||BJ8A0 SeY

aA13N08X3 JoIYD PIojIeA) Uaydels

[12uno? JoLISI UoASE PIN

! | Jo}y sjuswsbuelie

v:m >o__oa jeasuab jo juswiajels ayj st Siy.L

Page 68



Agenda Iltem 8

COMMUNITY WELLBEING PDG
28 MARCH 2017

Tiverton Town CCTV System Update

Cabinet Member(s): Cllr Margret Squires
Responsible Officer: Nick Sanderson, Head of Housing & Property Services

Reason for Report: To update Members of the changes to the Town Centre CCTV
system and operational overview.

RECOMMENDATION: That members note the upgraded CCTV facilities and the
benefits of the system to the Tiverton community.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The wellbeing and safety of Mid Devon
communities.

Financial Implications: The upgrade to the CCTV System was funded by capital
funds previously earmarked in 2015/16. Contributions are received annually from
Tiverton Town Council towards the maintenance and management of the system.
On occasions the police and community safety are also able to provide funding.

Legal Implications: The system is operated using the guidance provided by the
Surveillance Camera Code of Practice. This includes the handling of data.

Risk Assessment: If the CCTV System is not operating the police have less
evidence to identify and pursue individuals who have been involved in criminal
activities in the area. Therefore crime could potentially rise. With the increase of the
number of cameras now in use, there is wider coverage of the town centre area and
more incidents and criminal activity can be monitored and provided to the police
when required.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The CCTV System continues to be well used by the Tiverton Policing Team in
liaison with the CCTV Supervisor.

1.2 As outlined in the report to members for the January 2016 CSB PDG the
council planned to replace the existing CCTV system, reusing or relocating
any camera units and equipment where possible. Technical specs and
guotes were obtained. Funds were allocated to this within the capital budget
2015/16 and approved by Management Team.

2.0 The System Upgrade

2.1  The previous system had a total of 16 cameras covering the town centre and
Pannier Market area. In addition there are also some operational camera
monitoring the entrances and exits of the multi-storey car park.

2.2  As part of the upgrade we consulted with the partner agencies including the
Police, Highways and Devon County Council to identify the best locations for

MDDC Report Tiverton Town CCTV System Update
P P Padge 69



2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

new cameras to ensure the best possible coverage of the town centre key
areas. These are areas where there is most public footfall or known hotspots
for criminal activity and anti-social behaviour. Several of the cameras are
radio linked so need to be in line of sight of others in order to transmit the
images back to the control room. This needed careful planning in order to get
the best possible vantage points.

We did experience some considerable delays in completing the project which
was caused for a variety of reasons. This included obtaining permissions
from private property owners to install camera equipment on their premises
and arranging for the power from nearby street furniture, which resulted in
some additional ground works.

The system is now complete and consists of 26 camera’s with ten in new
locations in Tiverton not previously covered. This includes improved
coverage of the Pannier Market area, Barrington Street, the Lowman Green
area, Angel Hill and West Exe including allowing 360 degree views from the
mini roundabout. 13 of the units are Pan Tilt and Zoom (PTZ) two of which
have motion detection and 13 units are fixed. The PTZ cameras can be
operated from the control room. We also have 10 cameras on the MSCP in
Phoenix Lane .

The CCTV Control Room has new monitors and a larger hard drive to store
the additional footage from the additional cameras. New software is now in
use and the CCTV Operator is trained to view, retrieve and burn off any
images required.

CCTV Surveillance

The CCTV Supervisor is employed for 7 hours per week; however he
increases these hours considerably in a voluntary capacity. On average the
cameras are ‘manned’ for around 14 hours per week and this will most often
include a Saturday evening/night. During busy periods such as bank
holidays, events in the town centre or police operations the hours are
increased to 25-30 per week.

The CCTV Supervisor works very closely with the local policing team and can
on occasions be called out when a particularly serious crime has occurred in
the area and where CCTV can play an important part in identify suspect
individuals or vehicles that have been in the town centre area. Three such
call outs have occurred in the last 12 months and this included the ‘ram-raid’
incident at Banburys.

In order to support the police the CCTV Supervisor will change or increase his
hours to help with any police operations. Recent Operations have included
targeting shoplifting and drug offences.

It was identified that some of the tall trees and bushes in the town centre,
around the Multi-storey car park and the Market car park are impeding the
vision of the cameras. Work has been started to reduce the branches and
foliage in order to allow better views and tracking of individuals, vehicles or
activity.

MDDC Report Tiverton Town CCTV System Update Pagé 70



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

Incidents

In the last 12 months the police have made 37 formal requests for CCTV
footage in relation to incidents that have occurred in the Town Centre area.
Time is also spent searching for any useful evidence relating to wanted
individuals or vehicles that can assist police investigations. Gaining
intelligence regarding the movement of known individuals and their
associate’s helps give the police a good overview of their activities and can
assist when planning warrants or operations.

There has been one authorised insurance request in the last year relating to a
traffic incident that was captured on the cameras.

Regular phone calls are received by members of the community asking for
footage relating to damage to their vehicles but these are then routed via the
Police or their insurance company.

It is not easy to identify how many cases go to court where CCTV footage has
been requested by the police as it is not always possible to get the information
from the CPS or the courts. However if the CCTV Operator has witnessed
any incidents in ‘live view’ he will provide a statement to the police at the
same time as providing the footage. In these cases we may get notification of
the case results directly from the court.

Just prior to Christmas we were notified that a case where we were able to
provide footage on a shoplifting incident had resulted in two individuals being
arrested. Both were in court on 19th December 2016. One attended and
pleaded guilty to theft from a shop, theft (other), Burglary (other than dwelling
with intent to steal) and theft (other — including theft by finding). He was
ordered to pay costs of £115 and imprisoned for 16 weeks, keeping Tiverton
that little bit safer over the festive period. The other offender did not attend
court due to ill health and was due in court on 10 January. However he failed
to attend and a warrant was issued for his arrest.

At a hearing on 14 February 2017 an individual pleaded guilty to using
threatening / abusive / insulting words / behaving with intent to cause fear /
provoke unlawful violence and Obstructing/ resisting constable in the
execution of duty. As a result a community order was made for 15 days, with
a fine of £73 and court costs of £85.

Stakeholders

Mid Devon continues to liaise with other agencies that have an interest in the
town CCTV system. This includes the police, town council, street pastors and
local traders.

Street Pastors have expressed an interest in offering voluntary monitoring
support of the system which will be further investigated now the new system is
in place.

Summary

MDDC Report Tiverton Town CCTV System Update
P ystem Update  page 71



6.1 The cameras in the town are proving their worth against crime and identifying
local criminal activity.

6.2  There have been several incidents where the cameras have been relied upon
to track criminals in violent or serious cases. This has included the Banburys
store ram raid, a knife point theft from a newsagents, and violent attacks on
individuals. The system continues to support officers with intelligence
regarding the movements of known local criminals and evidence for lower
level crimes including theft, shoplifting and drug dealing.

Contact for more Information: Julia Ryder, Community Safety Officer, 01884
234996 / jryder@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Clir Margaret Squires, CCTV Supervisor, Management
Team

MDDC Report Tiverton Town CCTV System Update Pagé 72



Agenda Item 9

COMMUNITY PDG
28 MARCH 2017

AIR QUALITY ACTION PLAN UPDATE

Cabinet Member(s): Cllr Margaret Squires
Responsible Officer: Simon Newcombe, Public Health and Professional
Services Manager

Reason for Report: To provide an update of progress of the revision of the statutory
Air Quality Action Plans for the district

RECOMMENDATION: That the information in the report be noted and updated by
the Public Health Manager in future PDG meetings.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Air Quality Action Plan aligns with and directly
supports a number of key themes in the Corporate Plan as follows:

e Priority 1 Economy: Aim (other) - Act as a champion to improve local rail
services

e Priority 2 Homes: Aim 3 - Ensure consideration is given to the public health
impact of every development

e Priority 4 Environment: Aim 2 — Reduce our carbon footprint; Aim 3 Protect
the natural environment

e The district Public Health Plan is a priority project within the Corporate Plan
and air quality is a priority health inequality identified with the adopted plan

Financial Implications: The plan will encompass measures ranging from small-
scale initiatives through to major infrastructure projects such as the Cullompton relief
road. As such, the plan will be delivered through a variety of different mechanisms
including the Local Plan Review and planning obligations such as s106 and
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in addition to Government infrastructure funds
and the Devon County Local Transport Plan (LTP 3). There may also be
opportunities to bid into future Air Quality Grant funding nationally though this is not
certain.

As measures are formalised then these will be further assessed and provisional
implementation costs identified where these costs are not already known. Major
infrastructure proposals for example will be included in the Local Plan Review
Infrastructure Plan due for submission in March 2017 and will include estimated
costs. Overall, greater clarity on funding for specific measures and the plan overall
will emerge once the timeline for Local Plan Review examination and adoption is
known and from further consultation with Devon County Council in respect of the
emerging LTP3.

Community PDG Report 28" March 2017 — Air Quality AcBlaFg@pZaa



Legal Implications: The adoption and implementation of an Air Quality Action Plan
(where an authority has designated one or more Air Quality Management Areas) is a
statutory requirement under the Environment Act 1995 Local Air Quality
Management (known as the LAQM regime). Under the regime, Local Authorities
therefore have a duty to pursue measures which are designed to improve air quality.
The thresholds for air pollution are set out in statutory UK Air Quality Objectives
which in turn duplicate EU limit values and binding air quality standards.

Nationally, the UK is currently subject to EU infraction proceedings due to non-
compliance with EU air quality standards (evidenced locally in the two formal Air
Quality Management Areas in the district). Given that EU requirements are
enshrined in turn into UK law means that the Localism Act allows the Government
(DEFRA) to recharge LA’s with the cost of meeting these standards if it chooses to
do so.

The remodelled statutory Government guidance to the LAQM regime places greater
emphasis on delivery of effective intervention mechanisms to improve existing hot-
spots and mitigate for the effects of new development and any new public exposure
to poor air quality.

Risk Assessment: In addition to meeting our statutory duties and the risk of
financial penalties under the Localism Act if we fail to do so (see above), a failure to
make improvements to air quality would be directly contrary to our adopted Public
Health plan. Therefore, we would not address a priority health inequality target
locally. Furthermore, the successful implementation of an Air Quality Action Plan
underpinning relevant Local Plan policies is essential to mitigate against the impact
of significant new development district-wide and to deliver the wider community
infrastructure benefits.

Given the inherent requirement to have planning obligation measures in place in
order to deliver major parts of the plan then the successful implementation of the Air
Quiality Action should be considered against the risks of an extended timeline for the
Local Plan Review and the potential risk that the Local Plan is not found sound.

Air quality has an increasingly high profile in terms of both local and national policy in
addition to wider reporting of the issue across regional and national media. In turn is
generating public awareness beyond local communities within our specific AQMA
areas. A failure to implement and deliver and effective Action Plan should also be
viewed in this context in addition to our core statutory responsibilities.

1.0 Introduction
1.1  Fulfilment of Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 Local Air Quality

Management regime (LAQM) requires local authorities to produce an Air
Quality Management Plan where air quality management areas (AQMAS)

Community PDG Report 28" March 2017 — Air Qualitﬁ(@eg ﬁar%éiate



1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

have been declared for exceedances of statutory limit values for specific
pollutants.

The Council have designated two AQMAs in the district:

e Crediton AQMA for Nitrogen Dioxide (High Street) and Particulates
(Exeter Road and High Street)

e Cullompton AQMA for Nitrogen Dioxide (Fore Street, Higher Street and
Station Road)

The formal Air Quality Management Areas are characterised by roadside
locations where residents live in close proximity to the kerbside and the major
source of these pollutants is road transport. Compounding factors in both
areas are the historic town layouts which result in congested traffic
movements within narrow ‘street canyons’ created excessive polluting
emissions and poor dispersion of pollution.

Separate Air Quality Management Plans (AQAPs) were produced for Crediton
(2006) and Cullompton (2009). Public Health Services are responsible for
monitoring the current AQMAs and produces yearly statutory Air Quality
Review and Assessment Reports which are uploaded to the MDDC website.
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/environment/air-quality/local-air-
quality-management/

Recent national authoritative studies indicate air pollution causes around
40,000 premature deaths each year in the UK at a huge economic cost.
Delivering improvements to air quality is therefore both a national and local
priority.

DEFRA wrote to all local authorities in November 2016 outlining the
Government’s plan nationally to tackle air pollution. It also reminded
authorities of our legal responsibilities locally under the LAQM regime
requesting an update to the minister on our plans to tackle air quality. This
update was provided together with a commitment that we would be provided a
comprehensive update to our existing Action Plans in 2017.

The current Mid Devon AQAPSs introduced a number of short to long-term
measures which have largely been completed or require further review.
Notable high-profile successes include the adoption of wide ranging air
quality/low emission strategy policy and guidance under the current Local
Plan (currently under revision), the implementation of the ECO-Stars fleet
management scheme and construction of the Lords Meadow Link Road in
Crediton.

Significant improvements have been made with a reduction in exceedances in
limit values across both AQMAs however hotspot locations remain, principally

Community PDG Report 28" March 2017 — Air Quality AcBlaigﬂlpZaa


https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/environment/air-quality/local-air-quality-management/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/environment/air-quality/local-air-quality-management/

1.9

1.10

2.0

2.1

2.2

at the western end of Crediton High Street and Fore Street, Cullompton.
Furthermore improvements in other areas will require protection afforded by
additional measures in order to mitigate the impact of new traffic-generating
development, notably in Cullompton as proposed under the new Local Plan.

As result, it is timely from a number of perspectives that our AQAPs are
reviewed and updated with new measures. Following a briefing to the PDG,
members will recall it approved the review and adoption of an updated AQAP
at the November 2016 meeting with an early verbal update being provided in
January 2017 by the Public Health manager.

In terms of scope, the new Air Quality Management Plan (2017-21) will
encompass the whole of the district and report on what progress has occurred
since these individual plans were created and what we aspire to achieve in
the next 4-5 years. The plan will formally incorporate the requirements of the
two AQMAs in addition to any wider measures designed to protect air quality
across the district and prevent the designation of new AQMAs arising from
significant new commercial and residential development. More information on
the plan format is given in section 3 below.

Timeline and progress

Completion and delivery of the action plan is being led by an internal project
team including the Public Health Officer (Plan design and adoption), an
Environmental Health pollution specialist (Technical support and data) and the
Public Health Services Manager (Project management and delivery). An
outline project timeline has been created as reported at the previous PDG
meeting (see Annexe 1) with the initial steps now having been completed as
follows:

¢ Review existing Action Plan and update current measures

e Submit Defra Air Quality bids for supplementary measures/support

o First stage consultation with MDDC Forward Planning officers and
Development Planning officers to identify/confirm key
references/issues/Planning Documents/conflicts

e First stage discussion with Development Management - s106 projects

Last November 4 local authorities (Exeter, Teignbridge, East Devon and Mid
Devon) submitted two combined bids for DEFRA Air Quality Grants and a sole
bid was included by MDDC (See 4.0 Air Quality, Public Health Strategy and
Action Plan Update, Community PDG, 6™ January 2017).

DEFRA acknowledged that bidding for the grants was hugely over- subscribed
and in late February the winning bids were announced.
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/air-quality-grant-programme

Community PDG Report 28" March 2017 — Air Qualitﬁ(@eg ﬁa%@ate


https://www.gov.uk/government/news/air-quality-grant-programme

2.3

2.4

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Unfortunately both combined and sole bids were unsuccessful; however, one
of the combined bids (Electric Vehicle charging network) has been placed on
the ‘Reserve List’ indicating we were very close to a successful bid.

The next phase in developing the action plan will involve significant
consultation, liaison and input from/with key stakeholders who have an impact
on air quality in Mid Devon including Devon County Council Transport and
Planning, Public Health and Highways England. This will be followed by Town
and Parish Council consultation.

Reporting and review

The combined updated Action Plan will look somewhat different from the
current plans produced in 2006 and 2009 respectively. A Government
(DEFRA) review of the Local Air Quality Management regime implemented in
2016 introduced new assessment requirements and statutory reporting
templates including revised formats for our annual assessment work/air
guality monitoring and statutory Air Quality Action Plans.

The Action Plan will therefore set out the current air quality context, our policy
and drivers to improve air quality including those under a public health and
planning context. It will also set out our stakeholder engagement and
consultation work in developing the plan in addition to outlining the plan
measures. In order to aid EU reporting, these measures are required to be set
out under the following classification (where measures are identified):

e Alternative to private vehicle use

e Environmental permits

e Freight and delivery management

e Policy guidance and development control

e Promoting low emission plant and vehicles

e Travel alternatives

e Public information

e Traffic management and transport planning/infrastructure
e Vehicle fleet efficiency

Under the Government LAQM reporting requirements, we will be required to
report on plan progress annually through our annual status reports due to
submission by the end of March each year. Updates will be provided to the
PDG to fit in as close as possible with this reporting cycle.

Contact for more Information: Kevin Swift (Public Health Officer), 01884 244625
kswift@middevon.gov.uk and Simon Newcombe (Public Health and Professional

Services Manager) 01884 244615 snewcombe@middevon.gov.uk

Community PDG Report 28" March 2017 — Air Quality AcBlaigﬂlpZaz


mailto:kswift@middevon.gov.uk
mailto:snewcombe@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report:

Cabinet lead for Public Health — Cllir Margaret Squires
Leadership Team

Head of Planning and Regeneration

Members of the Community Policy Development Group

List of Background Papers:

Environment Act 1995, available at
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1995/25/contents

Statutory Local Air Quality Management Policy and Technical Guidance
LAQM.PG16 and LAQM.TG16, available at https://lagm.defra.gov.uk/supporting-
guidance.html

Royal College of Physicians/Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health — Every
breath we take: The lifelong impact of air pollution. Report of Working Party February
2016, available at https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-
take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution

Mid Devon District Council Draft Infrastructure Plan 2016, available at:
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/342702/mddc-infrastructure-plan-dec-2016-

draft-v2.pdf

Mid Devon District Council CIL Draft Charging Schedule, available at:
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/342699/cil-explanatory-notes.pdf

Mid Devon District Council Public Health Plan 2016 and update (see agenda item 67
Community PDG meeting 31 January 2017)

Community PDG Report 28" March 2017 — Air Qualitﬁ(@(g ﬁar]i&ate


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1995/25/contents
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/supporting-guidance.html
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/supporting-guidance.html
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/342702/mddc-infrastructure-plan-dec-2016-draft-v2.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/342702/mddc-infrastructure-plan-dec-2016-draft-v2.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/342699/cil-explanatory-notes.pdf

Annexe 1 — Outline project timeline

51 - Review existing Action Plan and update current measures in template document 51
52 - Submit Defra Air Quality bids For supplementary measurestzupport 52
53 - Agree outling project plan with PH Manager and update POG verbally [include Defra Grant bids if known) 53

54 - First stage consultation - MODC Forward Planning officers and Development Planning officers to identifyeonfirm key referencesfissuestSPDstconflicts

56 - First stage discussion with Development Management - 106 projects b=1i]

SE - Progress update to Community POG 284302017 SE
57 - First stage consultation with DCC Transpart and Planning, Highways, OCC Public Health 57

58 - Reviewlupdate and produce first draft - circulate for internal rewien =t

59 - Send draft For consultation with wider partrners, Town and P arishes and all relevant statutory authorities 54
10 - Review Feedback from partner consultation - produce second draft 510
511 - Progress update to Community POG &/662017

=]
512 - Final review by internal departments and key OCC delivery partners [plus any others) 12

512 - Produce third draft

514 - Circulate third drafr to Chair of Community PDG and Leadership Team for comment and final review 182017 514

515 - Present final drafr to Community POG for consideration and approval 515
516 - Present to Cabinet for approval

S12

SiE

6/ abed

Community PDG Report 28" March 2017 — Air Quality Action Plan update



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

COMMUNITY PDG
27 MARCH 2017:

PERFORMANCE AND RISK FOR 2016-17

Cabinet Member Clir Colin Slade
Responsible Officer Director of Corporate Affairs & Business Transformation,
Jill May

Reason for Report: To provide Members with an update on performance against
the corporate plan and local service targets for 2016-17 as well as providing an
update on the key business risks.

RECOMMENDATION: That the PDG reviews the Performance Indicators and Risks
that are outlined in this report and feeds back areas of concern to the Cabinet.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: Corporate Plan priorities and targets are
effectively maintained through the use of appropriate performance indicators and
regular monitoring.

Financial Implications: None identified

Legal Implications: None

Risk Assessment: If performance is not monitored we may fail to meet our
corporate and local service plan targets or to take appropriate corrective action
where necessary. If key business risks are not identified and monitored they cannot
be mitigated effectively.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Appendix 1 provides Members with details of performance against the
Corporate Plan and local service targets for the 2016-17 financial year.

1.2  Appendix 2 shows the section of the Corporate Risk Register which relates to
the Community Portfolio. See 3.0 below.

1.3  Appendix 3 shows the profile of all risks  for  the
Community Portfolio for this quarter.

1.4  Both appendices are produced from the corporate Service Performance And
Risk Management system (SPAR).

2.0 Performance
2.1 Compliance with food safety law is on target which means that 90% of

premises were again rated 4 or above under the Food Hygiene Rating
Scheme.

\l)/IDDC Report [title] Pa@e 81



2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Total number of users is above the cumulative target and has been over
75,000 per month every month except August and December this year. Other
results are a little disappointing.

When benchmarking information is available it is included.

Risk

The Corporate risk register has been reviewed by Management Team (MT)
and updated. Risk reports to committees include risks with a total score of 15
or more and all those with an impact score of 5. (See Appendix 2)

Conclusion and Recommendation

That the PDG reviews the performance indicators and risks for 2016-17 that
are outlined in this report and feedback any areas of concern to the Cabinet.

Contact for more Information: Catherine Yandle, Audit Team Leader ext 4975

Circulation of the Report: Management Team and Cabinet Member

\l)/IDDC Report [title] Pagé 82



SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Community
Corporate Plan Pl Report Community

Monthly report for 2016-2017
Arranged by Aims
Filtered by Aim: Priorities Community
For MDDC - Services

Key to Performance Status:

Performance Indicators:| No Data - - | On target ‘ |Above target‘ -

indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service

Priorities: Community
Aims: Promote physical activity, health and wellbeing
Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year  Prev Annual Apr May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug Act Sep Act Oct Act Nov Act Dec Act Jan Act Feb Act Mar Actual to Date Head
(Period) Year Target Act Act Servi
End Mana

Total 900,000 79,389 157,532 236,901 314,077 383,003 463,739 545,267 631,504 690,620 780,484 864,034 864,034 (11/12) Jill Mz
number of

users is at

least

900,000

Operational 88% Lee

Recovery Chest

Rate Karen
Spark

Adult Zest 3,800 3,612 3,546 3,607 Lee

Members Chest
Karen
Spark

Junior Zest n/a n/a 2,450 2,495 2,460 2,444

Members

Attrition n/a n/a 4.50%

Adult

Members

Attrition n/a n/a 5. 4.58%

Junior

Members

Introduce n/a n/a 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jill Mz

Trimtrails Simor

across the Newc

District

Aims: Other
Performance Indicators
Title Prev Prev.  Annual Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Actual to Head of  Officer Notes
Year Year Target Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Date Service /
(Period) End Manager

Number of social n/a n/a For 117 115 67 86 87 95 190 342 293 269 269 (10/12) Liz Reeves (January) No. ¢

media information Posts Publisher

communications only No. of Tweets ~

MDDC send out (MA)

Number of web 0 (3/4) 0 For 9,196 9,261 9,523 9,389 15,986 26,856 26,432 26,296 22,671 33,752 33,752 (10/12) Liz Reeves

hits per month information

only

Local Plan n/a n/a nla n/fa nla nla n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jenny

Review Clifford

Compliance with n/a nla 90% 90% 91% 91% 90% 91% 91% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% (10/12) Simon

food safety law Newcombe

Page 83

02/03/2017



This page is intentionally left blank



SPAR.net - Community PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2
Community PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Report for 2016-2017
For Community - Clir Colin Slade Portfolio
Filtered by Flag:Include: * CRR 5+ / 15+
For MDDC - Services
Not Including Risk Child Projects records or Mitigating Action records

Key to Performance Status:

Risks: [No Data (0+)] (ESH [Medium (5+)] | Low (1+) |

Community PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Risk: Legionella Legionella

Effects (Impact/Severity):

Causes (Likelihood):

Service: Leisure Services

Current Status: Medium Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very Current Risk Likelihood: 2 -
(10) High Low

Head of Service: Jill May

Review Note:

Risk: Pool Inflatable Pool Activities

Effects (Impact/Severity):

Causes (Likelihood):

Service: Leisure Services

Current Status: Medium Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very Current Risk Likelihood: 2 -
(10) High Low

Head of Service: Jill May

Review Note:

Risk: School Swimming Sessions School Swimming Sessions

Effects (Impact/Severity):

Causes (Likelihood):

Service: Leisure Services

Current Status: Medium Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very Current Risk Likelihood: 2 -
(10) High Low

Head of Service: Jill May

Review Note:

Page 85
Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 02 March 2017 16:32

02/03/2017



SPAR.net - Community PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Risk: Swimming Lessons Swimming Lessons
Effects (Impact/Severity):
Causes (Likelihood):

Service: Leisure Services

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very Current Risk Likelihood: 2 -
High Low

Head of Service: Jill May
Review Note:

Risk: Swimming Pool Swimming pool & spectator walkway
Effects (Impact/Severity):
Causes (Likelihood):

Service: Leisure Services

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very Current Risk Likelihood: 2 -
High Low

Head of Service: Jill May
Review Note:

Page 86

02/03/2017



SPAR.net - Risk Matrix Community Appendix 3
Risk Matrix Community Appendix 3

Report
For Community - Clir Colin Slade Portfolio
Current settings

% High

C 4-vigh  (NoRisks  NoRske  NoRisks  [LIITCNNLCII
2 3 - Medium | | No Risks
S 2-Low

2 1-Very Low

1-Very Low 2-Low 3 - Medium 4 - High 5 - Very High
Risk Severity

Page 87

02/03/2017



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

CABINET AGENDA ITEM
2 February 2017

FINANCIAL UPDATE FOR THE NINE MONTHS TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Cabinet Member Cllr Peter Hare-Scott
Responsible Officer Andrew Jarrett — Director of Finance, Assets & Resources

Reason for Report: To present a financial update in respect of the income and
expenditure so far in the year.

RECOMMENDATION(S): 1. The Cabinet note the financial monitoring
information for the income and expenditure so far for the 2016/17 financial
year.

Relationship to the Corporate Plan: The financial resources of the Council
impact directly on its ability to deliver the corporate plan; prioritising the use of
available resources brought forward and any future spending will be closely
linked to key Council pledges from the updated Corporate Plan.

Financial Implications: Good financial management and administration
underpins the entire document.

Legal Implications: None.

Risk Assessment: Regular financial monitoring information mitigates the risk of
over or underspends at year end and allows the Council to direct its resources to
key corporate priorities.

1.0 Introduction

1.1  The purpose of this report is to highlight to Cabinet our current financial
status and the likely reserve balances at 31 March 2017. It embraces both
revenue, in respect of the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account,
and capital and aims to focus attention on those areas which are unlikely
to achieve budget. It is particularly important for next year’s budget setting
and, looking further ahead, with the medium term financial plan.

1.2 Favourable variances generating either increased income or cost savings
are expressed as credits (negative numbers), whilst unfavourable
overspends or incomes below budget are debits (positive numbers). This
report only includes budget variances in excess of £10k as the purpose of
the report is to concentrate on material issues that may require further
investigation/action. Budget variances are expressed net of budgeted
transfers to or from earmarked reserves, which were previously approved
by Cabinet. A more detailed analysis will be provided with the final outturn
report for the year.

Page 89



2.0 Executive Summary of 2016/17
2.1 The table below shows the opening position of key operational balances of
the Council, the forecast in year movements and final predicted position at
31 March 2017:
Forecast in
Usable Reserves 31/03/2016 year movement 31/03/2017
£k £k £k
Revenue
General Fund
(see paragraph 3.2) (2’211) 64 (2!147)
Housing Revenue Account
(see parag?aph 4.2) (2,000) 0 (2,000)
Capital
Major Repairs Reserve 0 0 0
Capital Receipts Reserve (1,442) (1,089) (2,531)
Capital Contingency Reserve (567) 239 (328)

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

The General Fund Reserve

This is the major revenue reserve of the Council. It is increased or
decreased by the surplus or deficit generated on the General Fund in the
year. This reserve held a balance of £2,211k as at 31/03/16.

The forecast General fund deficit for the current year is £64k (a movement
of £12k since an annual variance of £52k was reported for November) as
shown at Appendix A. The most significant service movements this month
comprise:

Reactive maintenance at EVLC & CVSC £35k
Development Control fees & charges (E27)k

The major variances are highlighted at Appendix B. The current incomes
from our major funding streams are shown at Appendix C, whilst current
employee costs are shown at Appendix D.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
This is a ring-fenced account in respect of the Council’s social housing

function. Major variances and proposed corrective action are highlighted at
Appendix F.

Page 90



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Appendix E shows that the reserve opening balance is £2m. It is
anticipated that the forecast variance of £255k will affect the budgeted
transfer to the Housing Maintenance Fund and so the HRA reserve
balance should remain at £2m.

Overall, the HRA is forecast to underspend of £255k in 2016/17, the most
significant items of which comprise the following:

o £117k of savings across Housing Services, including significant
staffing savings across several teams, largely due to vacancies
going unfilled for the early part of the year as well as several
smaller variances in operational areas

o £32k surplus is forecast on dwelling rent since this area is slightly
ahead of target at this stage

o £61k saving forecast where the Learning Disability service
ceased to operate and fewer than expected new alarms need to
be purchased since stock levels are healthy

There are budgeted revenue contributions to capital projects as follows for
2016/17. This sum will be placed in an earmarked reserve at year end to
meet the anticipated spend in quarter 1 2017/18.

Description Budget Forecast Variance
£000 Outturn £000

£000
1 x Tipper Vehicle 24 0 24

The following works are expected to be funded from the Housing
Maintenance Fund during 2016/17. Due to slippage on the projects
detailed below it is anticipated that most of this funding will be required
during 17/18.

Description Budget Forecast Variance

£000 Outturn £000
£000

Birchen Lane re- 40 52 12

development

Palmerston Park 2,339 0 (2,339)

Queensway development 299 0 (299)

Burlescombe development 424 0 (424)

Stoodleigh development 223 0 (223)
3,325 52 (3,273)

In addition, £25k is planned to be spent on sewage treatment works and
funded by an earmarked reserve. It is now anticipated this spend will slip
into quarter 2 17/18.

Page 91



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Major Repairs Reserve

The Major Repairs Reserve had a nil balance at 31 March 2016. After this
year’s capital expenditure and funding of the Major Repairs Reserve the
closing balance is forecast to be £0k. Whilst there is a forecast
underspend of £160k on the Capital Programme relating to ‘Major Repairs
to Housing Stock’ this will remain in the Housing Maintenance Fund for
future reprioritisation.

Capital Programme

Capital projects by their very nature often overlap financial years. In some
cases it is known from the outset that the construction of buildings may fall
into 3 separate accounting years. The status of this year's capital
programme is shown at Appendix G.

Committed and Actual expenditure is currently £7,803k against a
budgeted Capital Programme of £15,710k. (Note this includes £7,669k of
slippage rolled forward from 15/16). As projects often overlap financial
years officers have given their best estimate of what is ‘deliverable’ in
16/17; this amounts to £10,583k. Committed and Actual expenditure will
therefore be monitored against this & currently shows an uncommitted
amount of £2,780k (£10,583k - £7,803Kk).

At this stage in the year the forecast underspend amounts to £624k,
£160k of this relates to major repairs to our housing stock and £130k for
renewable energy projects, also associated with our housing stock; both
these amounts will remain in their respective reserves for reprioritisation in
future years. The remaining forecast underspend mainly relates to: £105k
associated with the replacement of waste vehicles; due to changes in the
waste scheme 3 of the 5 large vehicles budgeted to be replaced can be
replaced with smaller vehicles, £84k in relation to various ICT projects,
£50K in relation to a land drainage scheme to be delivered by DCC &
£163k in relation to the project to bring the Department of Work and
Pensions into Phoenix House, which will be more appropriately be coded
to revenue and funded in full from a contribution from Department of Work
and Pensions.

Currently the forecast slippage to be carried forward to 17/18 amounts to
£4,240Kk, this mainly relates to delays with the contractor for delivery of
council house building projects at Palmerston Park and Birchen Lane
amounting to £2,250k and replacement vehicles which will now be
purchased during Q1 of 17/18 amounting to £1,153k, for further
information on this detail please refer to Appendix G.

Page 92



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

8.2

9.0

9.1

Capital Contingency Reserve

The Capital Earmarked Reserve has been set aside from Revenue to fund

Capital Projects; the movement on this reserve is projected below:

£k
Capital Earmarked Reserve at 1 April 2016 (567)
Funding required to support 2016/17 Capital Programme 239
Forecast Balance at 31 March 2017 (328)

Capital Receipts Reserve (Used to fund future capital programmes)

Unapplied useable capital receipts are used to part fund the capital
programme, the movement on this account for the year to date is given

below:
£k
Unapplied Useable Capital Receipts at 1 April 2016 (1,442)
Net Receipts to date (includes 20 “Right to Buy” Council
(1,538)
House sales)
Current Balance (2,980)
Forecast further capital receipts in year (350)
799

Forecast capital receipts to be applied in year

Forecast Unapplied Capital Receipts c/fwd. 31 March 2017 (2,531)

Please note the majority of these balances on the Capital Contingency
Reserve and the Capital Receipts Reserve are required to balance the

Medium Term Financial Strategy.
Treasury Management

The interest position so far this financial year can be summarised
follows:

Interest Receivable:

as

Forecast Forecast

Budget outturn  variance

£k £k £k

Investment Income Received (171) (201) (30)
Interest from HRA funding (54) (54) 0
Total Interest Receivable (225) (255) (30)

Page 93



10.0 Conclusion

10.1 Members are asked to note the revenue and capital forecasts for the
financial year. Managers have been working hard to offset overspends,
many unavoidable or unforeseen, with budget savings to deliver an outturn
close to the budget.

10.2 The financial monitoring process has been important and the pressures
and experience of the year to date fed into next year’s budget forecasts to
ensure that the budget set is both robust and realistic. Indeed, after
budgetary cuts for a number of years, it is clear that a number of service
areas are stretched in providing services to our community within existing
budgetary provision.

Contact for more Andrew Jarrett, 01884 23(4242)
information: ajarrett@middevon.gov.uk
Circulation of the Report: ClIr Peter Hare-Scott, Management Team

Page 94


mailto:ajarrett@middevon.gov.uk

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE
PERIOD 01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

|_Com|General FundSummary _________| Note | £ | £ | %

Clir C J Eginton
CM Corporate Management
LD Legal & Democratic Services: Member/Election Services

Clir K Busch
CP Car Parks
ES Cemeteries & Public Health
ES Open Spaces
GM Grounds Maintenance
WS Waste Services

Clir C R Slade
CcD Community Development
ES Environmental Services incl. Licensing
IT IT Services
PR Planning - Land charges
RS Recreation And Sport

Clir P H D Hare-Scott
FP Finance And Performance
RB Revenues And Benefits

Clir R L Stanley
ES ES: Private Sector Housing Grants
HG General Fund Housing
PS Property Services

Clir R J Chesterton
CcD Community Development: Markets
PR Planning And Regeneration

Clir M Squires
CS Customer Services
ES Environment Services - Public Health
HR Human Resources
LD Legal & Democratic Services: Legal Services

Appendix A

2016/17
GLUED
Budget Full Year Forecast | Variance

(0 = On budget)

Net recharge to HRA
IE260 Interest Payable
IE290 Interest Receivable on Investments
Interest from Funding provided for HRA
New Homes Bonus Grant
Sundry Grants
ABFGF Statutory Adjustments (Capital charges)
TREMR Net Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves
Non Domestic Rates - 15/16 Devon Pooling Gain
Formula Grant
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Transitional Grant
Council Tax
CTS Funding Parishes
Collection Fund Surplus

A 1,139,580 i (10,000) -0.9%
B 579,870 % (34,000) -5.9%
© (616,390) i 10,400 1.7%
D (47,610) I 42,772 -89.8%
F 54,800 § 46,276 84.4%
E 562,130 i (34,030) 6.1%
H 1,775,510 & 80,200 4.5%
1 414,980 i 10,000 2.4%
D 552,870 1 28,920 5.2%
Q 879,310 i (37,120) -4.2%
N (24,600) i (22,000) 89.4%
J (82,410) #855,000  -430.8%
K 680,960 i 0 0.0%
L 266,600 % (47,0000  -17.6%
D 165,720 i (12,100) 7.3%
M 232,470 i 4500 1.9%
G 272,580 § 39,220 14.4%
1 (3,410) ¥ 45000 1319.6%
N 741,670 161,958 21.8%
o 860,060 % (76,000) -8.8%
D 74,990 7,840 10.5%
P 479,310 { 31,190 6.5%
B 215,730 (12,000) -5.6%

(1,265,490) 0

146,030 0

(171,000) # (30,000)

(54,000) 0

(1,831,460) 0

0 0

400,720 0

APP B 2,169,990 (N (434,463)
8569510  §114563  1.3%

I (50,145)

(2,973,150) 0

(463,810) 0

(31,630) 0

(5,147,940) 0

55,250 0

(8,230) 0

General Fund Reserve 01/04/16

Page 95

(2,211,035)



Appendix B

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Full Year
Forecast

Note [Description of Major Movements I

D Environmental Services combined
Public Health Initiative - Walking Football (funded from EMR) 1,840 Community
Environmental Enforcement salary underspend from part year vacant post (15,700) Community
Environmental Enforcement agency overspend 8,000 Community
Eco Stars scheme (funded from Public Health EMR) 18,000 Community
Overspend on E/Health salary budget which is part off-set by savings in Private Sector Housing, increase costs of
Systems Admin post and Essential user allowance. 15,600 Community
Overspend on agency costs to cover sickness in E/Health 12,000 Community
Transport costs are higher than budgeted - increased essential users 4,650 Community
overspend on computer equipment 3,370 Community
Increased income on water testing (12,000) Community
Overspend on equipment budget in Control of Pollution due to new tubes for monitoring stations 5,000 Community
Licensing income over and above budget (10,000) Community
Licensing salaries - temporary increase in staff hours 6,000 Community
1 Community Development
Grant spend (covered by Seed Fund ear marked reserve) 16,000 Community
Reduction in hours and not back-filling a member of staff (11,500) Community
Redundancy costs for Head of Communities and Governance 12,000 Community
Salary savings, Grant and Funding Officer left part way through year (6,500) Community
J Recreation And Sport
All sites: Overhead overspend (various including new equipment and event supplies) 64,000 Community
Reactive maintenance at EVLC &CVSC (duct work and gas water
heater) 35,000 Community
All sites: Income year end under target 150,000 Community
All sites: Salaries overspend (various including management restructure) 106,000 Community
L Revenues And Benefits
Housing Benefit Subsidy (47,000) Community
N Planning And Regeneration

Grant spend (covered by High Street Innovation Fund ear marked reserve)
Business Development - salary savings due to a restructure

Building Control: Salary savings net of Exeter City Council plan checking

Building Control: Fee income down - due to economic conditions and competition
Development Control: Salaries - staff vacancies

Development Control: Consultancy costs

Development Control: Fees & Charges net of future large applications

Land charges fees and charges

Devon County Council land charges costs

Tiverton Eastern Urban Extension - Consultancy (Covered by Earmarked reserve)
Forward Planning: Local Plan Examination now to occur in 2017/18 transfer to EMR
Regional Planning: Greater Exeter Strategic Plan agreed by Cabinet

Regional Planning: Greater Exeter Strategic Plan - Fixed term post

Local Plan development costs

Salary savings from the Town Centre Manager post

43,308 Community
(22,400) Community
(9,000) Community
20,000 Community
(67,600) Community
16,100 Community
109,000 Community
(20,000) Community
(2,000) Community
36,000 Community
(78,000) Community
70,000 Community
10,330 Community
50,300 Community
(16,080) Community

Cabinet (137,930)
Community 494,718
Homes 31,620
Environment 135,218
Economy 55,400

0

Page 96



GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Net Trf
Net Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves to EMR)




19 xipuaddy

$80IN0SayYy uewWNH dH
S9OINISS 9)SEeM SM BuisnoH pun4 |ejauag) OH
spodg pue uonealoay (Y] 90oUBUB)UIB\ SPUNOIS) )
s}ijouag pue SanuaAsY ay @ouewlopad pue adueul dd
s90In8S Apadold Sd S92IAISS [BJUSWIUOIIAUT s3
uonelsauabay pue Buiuue|d dd S9OIAISS JAWO0ISN) (30)
oljesoows pue |eba al syled Jen do
S9OINIBS “1'| 11 swabeue|y 9jesodio) o
wewdojaaaq Allunwwo) an
196pnq aAoge awoou| / sbuineg = - 10b64e)} Japun awoou| / puadsianQ = + Aoy
000°00T-
0@R0s-
& @ - 3 P - > & o e ©
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 I I 1 | o %

- of¥os
000°00T
000°0ST
000002
000°05¢
000°00€
000°0S€
000°00%

F 9Juelep uununQ ﬂwu.uw_.ohn_ pun{ jeiauan h.ﬁ\m._“ON




Appendix C

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Building Control Fees
Planning Fees

Land Searches

Car Parking Fees - See Below
Leisure Fees & Charges
Trade Waste Income

Garden Waste Scheme
Licensing

Market Income

Pay and Display

Beck Square,Tiverton
William Street, Tiverton
Westexe South, Tiverton
Wellbrook Street, Tiverton
Market Street,Crediton
High Street,Crediton
Station Road,Cullompton
Multistorey, Tiverton
Market Car Park, Tiverton
Phoenix House, Tiverton
P&D Shorts & Overs

Day Permits

Allocated Space Permits
Overnight Permits

Day & Night Permits
Market Walk Permits

Other Income

Standard Charge Notices (Off Street)

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 | 2016/17 | Forecast| Variance |
Annual Budget | Profiled Budget | Actual | Variance |Variation| |

£ | £ | £ [ % |
(280,000) (210,000)  (189,409) 20,591 20,000 -7%
(834,000) (625,500) (543,612) 81,888 109,000 -13%
(110,460) (82,845)  (100,974) (18,129) (20,000) 18%
(814,200) (626,155)  (605,139) 21,016 37,000 -5%
(2,685,020) (1,955,180) (1,790,614) 164,566 150,000 -6%
(656,000) (646,160)  (640,384) 5,776 0 0%
(500,000) (375,000)  (341,793) 33,207 90,000 -18%
(120,700) (101,948)  (109,911) (7,963) (10,000) 8%
(122,470) (91,853) (65,426) 26,427 35,000 -29%
~ (6,122,850) (4,387,262) 327,379 411,000 6.7%
Bud Income
Spaces pa per space
(83,780) (64,938) (66,930) (1,992) 40 (2,095)
(30,780) (22,320) (21,190) 1,130 45 (684)
(45,800) (35,072) (36,199) (1,127) 51 (898)
(13,540) (10,287) (11,699) (1,412) 27 (501)
(36,420) (27,682) (30,138) (2,456) 39 (934)
(79,330) (61,559) (57,242) 4,317 190 (418)
(34,900) (27,584) (31,292) (3,708) 112 (312)
(167,980) (125,182) (93,680) 31,502 631 (266)
(216,120) (162,946)  (166,919) (3,973) 122 (1,771)
(3,680) (2,745) (3,283) (538) 15 (245)
0 0 49 49 0 0
- (T12,330)  (540,315) (518,523) 21,792 1,272 (3,124)
(31,000) (31,000) (13,362) 17,638
(26,040) (26,040) (32,993) (6,953)
(1,000) (1,000) (195) 805
0 0 (7,375) (7,375)
(9,380) (9,380) (14,099) (4,719)
(34,450) (18,420) (18,592) (173)
(8142000  (626,155) (605,139) 21,015 10,200
(28,000) (21,000) (33,170) (12,170) (14,000)

Page 99



GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL TO 31 Appendix D
DECEMBER 2016

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 | 2016/17
Annual Budget | Profiled Budget | Actual | Variance |
Total Employee Costs £ | £ | £ | £ |

General Fund

Community Development 295,180 221,385 236,396 15,011

Corporate Management 901,960 676,470 656,994 (19,476)
Customer Services 764,610 573,458 504,096 (69,362)
Environmental Services 923,320 692,490 726,695 34,205

Finance And Performance 632,710 474,533 467,098 (7,435)
General Fund Housing 197,330 147,998 141,333 (6,665)
Grounds Maintenance 448,900 336,675 292,572 (44,104)
Human Resources 361,460 271,095 285,874 14,779

I.T. Services 522,100 391,575 355,216 (36,359)
Legal & Democratic Services 417,660 313,245 285,529 (27,716)
Planning And Regeneration 1,525,620 1,144,215 1,012,454 (131,761)
Property Services 385,320 288,990 259,555 (29,435)
Recreation And Sport 1,630,750 1,223,063 1,292,871 69,808

Revenues And Benefits 668,450 501,338 512,453 11,115

Waste Services 1,863,780 1,397,835 1,325,981 (71,854)

11,539,150 8,654,365 8,355,118

Housing Revenue Account

SHO13A Repairs & Maintenance 593,480 445,110 438,738 (6,372)
SHO17A Housing & Tenancy Services 1,432,670 1,074,503 983,430 (91,073)
SHO22 Alarms expenditure 66,720 50,040 25,176 (24,864)

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Annual Budget | Profiled Budget | Actual | Variance |

AgencyStaff | £ | £ | £ [ £
General Fund

Car Parks 0 0 0 0
Community Development 0 0 0 0
Corporate Management 0 0 0 0
Customer Services 0 0 2,432 2,432
Environmental Services 0 0 11,592 11,592
Finance And Performance 0 0 0 0
General Fund Housing 0 0 0 0
Grounds Maintenance 5,000 3,750 21,551 17,801
Human Resources 0 0 0 0
I.T. Services 0 0 0 0
Legal & Democratic Services 0 0 5,864 5,864
Planning And Regeneration 0 0 0 0
Property Services 0 0 7,112 7,112
Recreation And Sport 0 0 0 0
Revenues And Benefits 0 0 0 0
Waste Services 128,500 96,375 148,600 52,225

Housing Revenue Account

SHO13A Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 0 0

SHO17A Housing & Tenancy Services 0 0 28,923 28,923

SHO22 Alarms expenditure 0 0 0 0
0o 0 28923 28923
Page 100



Appendix E

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR
THE PERIOD 01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016/17 Annual
Housing Revenue Account(HRA) [ Notes | £ £ %
Income
SHOO01 Dwelling Rents Income A (12,593,760)  (32,000) 0.3%
SHOO04 Non Dwelling Rents Income B (554,070) (16,000) 2.9%
SHOO06 Tenant Charges For Services Cc (42,360) 32,000 -75.5%
SHOO07 Leaseholders' Service Charges D (23,540) 2,000 -8.5%
SHOO08 Contributions Towards Expenditure E (33,720) 0 0.0%
SHOO09 Alarm Income - Non Tenants F (194,660)  (15,000) 7.7%
SHO10 H.R.A. Investment Income G (40,000) 0 0.0%
SHO11 Miscellaneous Income H (19,000) 15,000 -78.9%
Services
SHO13A Repairs & Maintenance I 3,214,780 (71,000) 0.0%
SHO17A Housing & Tenancy Services J 1,354,750  (117,000) -8.6%
SHO22 Alarms expenditure K 152,200 (61,000) -40.1%
Accounting entries 'below the line’
SHO29 Bad Debt Provision Movement L 25,000 0 0.0%
SHO30 Share Of Corporate And Democratic M 177,400 1,000 0.6%
SHO32 H.R.A. Interest Payable N 1,268,030 0 0.0%
SHO34 H.R.A. Transfers between earmarked reserves (0] 2,393,010 0 0.0%
SHO36 H.R.A. R.C.C.O. P 24,000 (24,000) -100.0%
SHO37 Capital Receipts Reserve Adjustment Q (20,800) 0 0.0%
SHO38 Major Repairs Allowance R 2,800,000 31,000 1.1%
SHO45 Renewable Energy Transactions S (130,000) 0 0.0%

Net recharge to HRA 1,265,490
Capital Charges 977,250
Housing Revenue Account [ £k
Total HRA reserve as at 01/04/16 (2,000)

Forecast movement in the year

!IO

Housing Maintenance Fund

Opening balance (8,886)
Reserve utilised for capital works (see appendix G) 52
Budgeted transfer to reserves (1,704)

Forecast variance for the year (see above)

Renewable Energy Fund
Opening balance (342)
Expenditure forecast for this year (see appendix G)

Net income forecast for this year Page 101
d_




Appendix F

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD 01
APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Forecast

Variance

[Note|Description of Major Movements Corrective Action £

A

R

Dwelling rent is 0.3% ahead of target

Garage income is ahead of target

The Learning Disability Support contract has ceased to operate
Minor variance
Community Alarm sales continue to be high

Miscellaneous income items have been fewer than typical during
2016/17

Several smaller savings across the Repairs team combine to give
this forecast variance

Savings due to restructuring of staffing across several teams as
well as several smaller savings across operational budgets

The Learning Disability Support contract has ceased to operate
and there is less need than anticipated for new equipment
purchase.

Minor variance

Tipper vehicle will now be purchased during 2017/18

£2,831,000 is expected to be spent on major works this year (see
appendix G)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

None

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

None

(32,000)

(16,000)

32,000
2,000

(15,000)

15,000

(71,000)

(117,000)

(61,000)
1,000

(24,000)

31,000

Page 102



€0T abed

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
MONITORING OF 2016/17 CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Appendix G

Deliverable Actual Committed Variance to Adj Forecast Forecast Notes
Capital Expenditure Expenditure Total Capital (Underspend)/ Slippage
Code Scheme Programme 2016/17 2016/17 Programme Overspend to 17/18
2016/17
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
General Fund Projects
Lords Meadow leisure centre
CAB24|Main car park resurfacing 50,000 0 0 0 (50,000) 50,000 | Forecast completion Q1 17/18.
Exe Valley leisure centre
CAB27|EVLC - Pressure set replacement Hot/Cold 35,000 0 0 0 (35,000) Forecast completion Q4 16/17
Planning approved. Planned commencement April 2017 with anticipated
CA626|EVLC - Fitness extension - subiect to business case * 22,000 26,169 25,284 51,454 29,454 30,000 completion Nov ‘17
* Note £500k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17
Phoenix House
Costs in relation to this project have more appropriately been charged to
CA451|Phoenix House - Ground Floor changes - subject to business case 163,000 0 0 0 (163,000) (163,000) revenue, however these will be fully reimbursed in payment from DWP
Pannier Market
CAS505|Pannier Market -Pedestrian roof cover - subject to business case ** 0 0 0 0 0 Project no longer required - to be reviewed at Mgmt Team
** Note £110k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17
CA507|Tiverton Pannier Market Pigpens 73,000 3,143 0 3,143 (69,857) 50,000 | Forecast completion Q1 17/18
Forecast completion by 31/03/17. Additional costs for Scaffolding & Crane
needed to be re erected as original supplier went into administration circa
CA508|Pannier Market Clock Tower 34,000 1,479 32,000 33,479 (521) 4,500 £4.5k. Additional cost will be funded from an EMR.
MSCP Improvements
Capital works on hold pending Premier Inn project. Anticipated spend Q3
CAT709|MSCP improvements (refer to Matrix condition report) 50,000 (7,098) 7,098 0 (50,000) 50,000(17/18
Play Areas
CAB08|Play area refurbishment - Wilcombe Tiverton 50,000 0 59,995 59,995 9,995 8,900 Project complete Q3 16/17
CAB28|Play area refurbishment - West Exe Recreation Ground Tiverton 50,000 0 2,300 2,300 (47,700) 48,000 Forecast completion Q2 17/18
Other Projects
CSAG selected preferred option £5,114k in 17/18 Capital Programme.
CA403|Town Hall Redevelopment Project 20,000 10,175 6,267 16,442 (3,558) 16,000 Further Architects design works to be commissioned
EA will manage project - delivery due in 18/19. MDDC will contribute £67k to
CA420|Land drainage flood defence schemes - Ashleigh Park Bampton 67,000 0 0 0 (67,000) 67,000|project
CA448| Angel Hill improvements 15,000 4,749 0 4,749 (10,251)
CA449|Town centre/Market area fibre optic hub and camera system 30,000 38,612 0 38,612 8,612 8,600
Heads of terms being negotiated between interested party. Unsure at this
CA452|Station Yard re construct shower block welfare 35,000 0 0 0 (35,000) stage whether any additional costs to facilitate leasing the land.
CA453|Land drainage flood defence scheme - Newton St Cyres 50,000 0 0 0 (50,000) (50,000) Project to be managed & delivered by DCC
Forecast completion Q2 17/18. Currently examining future options for these
CA454|Phoenix Lane - Conversion to homeless shelter 60,000 1,626 0 1,626 (58,374) 40,000|premises
CA455| St Lawrence Green Project 30,000 0 0 0 (30,000) Forecast completion Q4 16/17
CAB26|Waste move - Porta Cabins at Carlu Close 114,000 113,910 0 113,910 (90) Project complete
ICT Projects
CA421|Replacement of PC estate 330s 40,000 0 0 0 (40,000) 40,000 Forecast completion Q1 17/18
CA423| Continued replacement of WAN/LAN 60,000 0 0 0 (60,000) Forecast completion Q4 16/17
CA425|Server farm expansion/upgrades 108,000 12,028 0 12,028 (95,972) 32,000(£76k forecast spend by Q4 16/17. £32k to slip into 17/18
Budget not required. Sufficient funding in EMR reserve (£107k) to fund
CA433|Unified Communications/telephony 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) (25,000) project in 17/18
CA437|Digital Transformation 104,000 40,400 2,375 42,775 (61,225) 53,000|£53k forecast slippage , Projects to be identified during Jan'17
CA439|Mobile Working NDL MX 39,000 32,000 7,000 39,000 0
CA442| Arc Server Spatial (open Source Mapping) 18,000 0 0 0 (18,000) (18,000) Budget not required. This work was completed in 15/16
CA446 | E-Financials Technical refresh 30,000 18,985 11,000 29,985 (15) Forecast completion Q4 16/17
CRM planned replacement in 17/18 with additional £50k requested in MTFP
CA456 | Digital Transformation - replacement of CRM 50,000 0 0 0 (50,000) 50,000(to give a total project budget of £100k
CA457| Digital Transformation including Cosmic for Mid Devon 20,000 0 0 0 (20,000) (20,000) Budget no longer required
Forecast completion Q4 16/17. Forecast spend circa £28k. Circa £20k of this
underspend will be for expenditure that is under Capital diminimis and
CA444|SQL/Oracles refreshes 50,000 13,289 13,888 27,177 (22,823) (21,000) therefore coded to revenue - ICT £12.8k and £6.9k to Accountancy.
Replacement Vehicles - Grounds Maintenance
CA712|Iveco Tipper (or equivalent) 24,000 0 0 0 (24,000) 24,000|Forecast purchase Q1 17/18
Replacement Vehicles - Refuse Collection
CAB814|Dennis Eagle Terberg RCV 22-26t (or equivalent) 160,000 0 0 0 (160,000) 160,000 Forecast purchase Q1 17/18
Forecast purchase Q1 17/18. Savings due to changes in waste scheme
meaning not all vehicles are required to have the same carrying capacity. 3 *
CAB821|5 Refuse Vehicles with Food waste capability *** 900,000 0 0 0 (900,000) (105,000) 795,000|£180k Dennis Eagle & 3 * £85k small refuse vehicles
*+* Note £740k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17
CAB822|7.5T Tipper 100,000 0 0 0 (100,000) (25,000) 75,000 | Anticipated cost £75k. On hold pending Clinical Waste review
Replacement Vehicles - Street Cleansing
CAB825|3.5T Tipper 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) 25,000 50,000 | Forecast purchase Q1 17/18. Includes 3.5t delivery van
CAB827|3.5T Tipper 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) 25,000 |Forecast purchase Q1 17/18
2,726,000 309,468 167,206 476,674 (2,249,326) (334,000) 1,609,000




0T abed

Deliverable Actual Committed Variance to Adj Forecast Forecast Notes
Capital Expenditure Expenditure Total Capital (Underspend)/ Slippage
Code Scheme Programme 2016/17 2016/17 Programme Overspend to 17/18
2016/17
Private Sector Housing Grants
CG215(Works in Default Grants 9,513 8,130 17,643 17,643
CG216|Private Sector Housing initiatives to be prioritised 104,000 0 0 0 (104,000) 86,000
Forecast spend by 31/03/17 £350k. The pass ported DFG grant of £505k from
CG201 |Disabled Facilities Grants—Private Sector 468,000 234,701 77,332 312,033 (155,967) 118,000|DCC will fund this spend
Please note where possible commitments are raised on the Finance Ledger. Currently the total commitment for Private Sector Housing Grants held outside the ledger is £85k.
This underspend includes underspent budget on Private Tenant DFG's amounting to *£156k; these are effectively ring fenced, therefore leaving £86k uncommitted. (£242k - £156k)
Commitments include all approved grants. The timing of when these are drawn down is dependent on the client (up to 1 year), therefore at year end although sums may be committed, some may be carried forward to 2017/18 as slippage.
572,000 244,214 85,462 329,676 (242,324) 0 204,000
Affordable Housing Projects
CA200|Grants to Housing Associations to provide units (funded by commuted sum) 100,000 16,246 0 16,246 (83,754) 80,000 Commitment likely to crystallise in 17/18
100,000 16,246 - 16,246 (83,754) 0 80,000
Total General Fund Projects 3,398,000 569,928 252,668 822,596 (2,575,404) (334,000) 1,893,000
Deliverable Actual Committed Variance to Adj Forecast Forecast Notes
Capital Expenditure Expenditure Total Capital (Underspend)/ Slippage
Code Scheme Programme 2016/17 2016/17 Programme Overspend to 17/18
2016/17
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
HRA Projects
£160k forecast underspend is in relation to the following: £65k Boiler works,
£45k contract works & £50k structural works; this will remain in the HMF for
CA100|Major repairs to Housing Stock 2,991,000 1,743,643 890,424 2,634,067 (356,933) (160,000) future reprioritisation.
CA111|Renewable Energy Fund Spend 200,000 70,000 0 70,000 (130,000) (130,000) £130k will be reprioritised for spending in 17/18
CA112|Birchen Lane - re development of unit for housing conversion (4 units) 367,550 192,184 175,370 367,554 4 150,000 | Forecast completion Q2 17/18. Contract to be renegotiated
Full contract commitment on system, circa £2.1m works will roll forward to
. . . 17/18 from 'Deliverable Budget'. Forecast completion Q3 17/18
CA119|Palmerston Park Tiverton - affordable dwellings (26 units) 3,160,700 994,165 2,667,049 3,661,214 500,514 2,100,000
CA122|Iveco Tipper 3.5t (or equivalent) 24,000 0 0 0 (24,000) 24,000|Forecast purchase Q1 17/18
Some feasibility work will be undertaken in 16/17. Forecast completion Q4
CA124|Queensway (Beech Road) Tiverton (3 units) 10,000 0 0 0 (10,000) 5,000|17/18
CG200|Disabled Facilities Grants - Council Houses 297,000 238,017 0 238,017 (58,983)
Some feasibility work will be undertaken in 16/17. Forecast completion Q4
CA120|Burlescombe (6 units) *** 80,000 90 4,860 4,950 (75,050) 23,000(17/18
*++ Note £700k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17
Costs associated around land purchase are likely to occur in 17/18. Spoken
with responsible officer & 'Deliverable Programme' adjusted accordingly. Site
CA125|Waddeton Park - (70 units) 10,000 4,640 0 4,640 (5,360) 5,000|subject to Judicial review
CA126|Sewerage Treatment Works - Washfield 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) 25,000 | Forecast completion Q2 17/18
Some feasibility work will be undertaken in 16/17. Forecast completion Q4
CA127|* Stoodleigh - Pending feasibility (4 units) 20,000 0 0 0 (20,000) 15,000(17/18
Total HRA Projects 7,185,250 3,242,739 3,737,703 6,980,442 (204,808) (290,000) 2,347,000
|CAPITAL PROGRAMME GRAND TOTAL SPEND 10,583,250 3,812,667 3,990,371 7,803,038 | (2,780,212)[ (624,000)] 4,240,000




WHAT IS AN ACTIVE LlFESTYLE? An 'active lifestyle' means a mix

of different things for different

AMIX OF DIFFERENTTHINGS e 7 .
FOR DIFFERENT PEOPLE individuals. It could include:

BEING
ﬁ‘tr:wéix e walking or other low intensity
DAILY ; ;
ACTIVITY exercise as a first step to help
) ﬁ you get healthy
k o) 2 e building activity into different
ij” parts of your everyday life like

choosing active means of
travel or being active at work

= g 4 e informal recreational St r at e
2~ - activities like jogging, going to

LOWINTENSITY
EXERCISE LIKE

WALKING - ORJUST PLAYING ORGANISED the gym or getting outdoors
GETTING OUTAND ABOUT SPORTORGOING TO 0 .
WITH FAMILY AND FRIENDS with your family,

' THE GYM
e taking part in organised sport 20 1 7- 2 2

ACTIVE DEVON'’S ROLE

We know that active lifestyles bring huge benefits to individuals and they are also an important part of making Devon'’s
communities even better places to live. Active Devon recognises that it is uniquely placed within the active lifestyles sector in

Devon to provide advocacy and leadership and we take that responsibility very seriously. F | N AL WO R K| N G D R AFT _ AP P R OVE D

In its 2§15 'Strategy for an Active Nation' the Government recognises the role that sport and physical activity can plan in

transgming people’s lives and the communities they live in. It has identified 5 key outcomes for sport and physical activity: FO R CO M M E N T

- phy('sical wellbeing

o
- meffhl wellbeing

- individual development our Vision.
[ ]
- social and community development Everyone in Devon active for life

- economic development

We will broaden the network to encompass partners, providers and influencers that share a focus on these outcomes. Active
Devon will work on behalf of partners to demonstrate the value of activity and to secure a multi-partner commitment to help ° °
at least 125,000 people in Devon to GET more active or STAY active. We will also continue to extend our influence amongst our MISSIOI’I:

national partners to raise their awareness of Devon’s mission to inspire & support people to get active and stay active and to To Inspire & Support people to get active and Stay active

secure their support.

OUR VALUES

? ﬁ 55 l M ... about the benefits of active lifestyles, about our mission and about our values op o
PASSION Our Ambition:

Umﬁﬂg@@ncﬁw ... trusted and relied upon to always act with integrity . .
m@ﬂ]@g : : . To help at least 125,000 people in Devon to GET more active or STAY
U U@m ... going the extra mile to ensure that everyone has the chance to get involved active... two thirds of the people we help will be amongst Devon’s

@E@[P@B{]@BW@ME@% to people's needs and to our diverse local communities half a million least active people.

@@&&[ﬂ[‘%@ E’g mﬁn@m ... working together to achieve more
... driven to achieve quality outcomes & impact Active Devon, The Loft, Haven Banks Outdoor Education Centre, Haven Road, Exeter EX2 8DP

01392 925150 ~ www.activedevon.org ~ info@activedevon.org ~ @activedevon ~ www.facebook.com/activedevoncsp

¢T Wa)| epusby



Active Devon is a community focussed, not for profit organisation
inspiring and supporting the people of Devon to lead active
lifestyles, whether that's getting active for the first time or staying
active throughout their lives. To deliver our mission we work with
an extensive network of partner organisations and individuals to:

THE CHALLENGE IN NUMBERS

150

THE NUMBEROF PEOPLE

IN DEVON WHO GET
MlN UTES LESS THAN THE RECOMMENDED
EXERCISE LEVEL
THE WEEKLY EXERCISE
AN ADULTNEEDS 5Q%
TO GETHEALTH BENEFITS achieve
150 minutes

of activity

INEQUALITY(

ACTIVITY LEVELSIN -

DEVON

OUR AMBITION

124

REACH 50 MINUTES
OF ACTIVITY PERWEEK
THROUGHSPORT

To help at least

T
Q
«Q
(9]
=

in Devon...

125,000 people

develop the right opportunities for people to start and stay being active

support existing partners and providers to promote and grow the variety of opportunities available for local people
create Devon wide campaigns to inform and inspire individuals to be active

deliver initiatives in a way that is appropriate to each local area

generate more resources by making the best use of current investment and securing more

THE CHALLENGES FOR PEOPLE
‘ Tj I?E(;E:{%{_E;YYLEVELS VARY BY

- AGE

“I DIDN‘TUSEDTO LIKE
GETTING HOTAND SWEATY”

THE -~ HEALTH ORDISABILITY 380/0
I I W
COSTTO ATTEND?”

*I THOUGHT | WAS
TOO OLD FOR ALLTHAT
RUNNING AROUND?#

[
5% MoS' “WILL THEY CATER
e ST ACTIVE FOR MY NEEDS?
L“:T\VE
3 INACTIVITY AdED
g WHERE | LIVE X
s (B

25% LESS PEOPLE ARE ACTIVE
AT 65, AND 50% LESS AT 75+ DISABLED PEOPLE ARE
TWICE AS LIKELY TO BE INACTIVE

... two thirds of the people we help
will be amongst Devon’s %2 million
least active people

... to GET more active

or STAY active...

OUR GOALS

We think there are five areas that we need to focus on to help us achieve
our goals:

1. Active Lifestyles — by
ensuring that the opportunity and the offer is right for their needs and is
accessible to them

Get Active

2. Supporting communities — in individuals and local
organisations to help make Devon’s communities places where it is easy
to choose activity

for more people from all sections of
Devon's society to choose activity
as part of their everyday lifestyle.

The challenge of people doing little or no activity is spread right

Understanding people or communities we are trying to help. By
using the collective insight, intelligence and local knowledge of
the network to help them identify the opportunities that are
right for them.

Stay Active

Developing provision by working with local partners, groups or
individuals to help them establish new activities or develop

for people to keep . .
existing opportunities.

choosing activity as part
of their lifestyle Promoting and campaigning to get people thinking about ways
they could lead a more active lifestyle and promoting the range

of opportunities available

3. Influence - to inform and inspire them to
choose active lifestyles and across Devon behind the
Mission

across society. But there has never been more intelligence and

consumer insight available and we will use this to focus and
prioritise our efforts towards those people across the population
where there is greater impact to be achieved.

4. Innovation -
people’s lifestyle choices towards activity

to influencing

5. Growth - and energy behind achieving the Vision

These approaches will be set out in detailed operational plans against
which we will regularly assess progress to refine to refine our
approach and prioritise how and where resources should be targeted.



Agenda Iltem 14

Community PDG Chairman’s Report 2016-17

| took over as the new Chairman at the start of the year as the PDG shortened its name to just
Community. Nonetheless it retained its broad interest in well-being for the District.

Much of the work of the PDG has centred around checks and balances based on regular reports from
officers and outside organisations. Some of these have been routine from financial monitoring, risk
reviews through to public health plan performance and anti-social behaviour statistics. Others were
less so, for example with regular updates from leisure services where changes in pricing, marketing
and staffing needed review, not least with agreement to fund an extension to the Exe Valley Leisure
Centre.

Other topics have been rather more demanding with important recommendations being required.
Of note given their impact on the community were discussions and decisions on Safeguarding and
changes to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme. The budget was a challenge because of the
increasing pressure from government funding to the District so requiring a special working group
session.

Always open to new areas of relevant interest, the PDG benefitted from general awareness
presentations on Modern-day Slavery and, as a separate Member Briefing, Mental Health Services in
Devon.

Whilst all this work is important, the committee has sought, in line with its title, to develop some
new policy. The health risks caused by poor air quality in the UK were highlighted in the national
press and so were identified as a key area to address with new policy in the District. The first step
was to develop and Air Quality Strategy and Policy. At the time of this report these remain work-in-
progress aiming for finalisation and implementation next year.

Finally, | would like to thank all members and officers for their contributions which made it a
successful year, not least Julia Stuckey our Clerk for keeping us in order.

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	5 Strategic Grants and  Service Level Agreement Programme
	6 Single Equalities Policy and Equality Objective
	Equality Information 160317
	SES 2017

	7 Health and Safety Policy
	MDDC Health and Safety General Policy Statement 2017
	MDDC Health and Safety signed statement 2017

	8 CCTV Annual Update
	9 Air Quality Update
	10 Performance and Risk
	Community PDG Performance Appendix 1
	Community PDG Risk Management Appendix 2
	Risk Matrix Appendix 3

	11 Financial Monitoring
	Combined Dec Monitoring Report Community App A-F
	App G Capital Programme

	12 Active Devon Draft Strategy
	14 Chairmans Annual Report

